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     July 3, 2024 
 

 
VIA EMAIL  
 
Ms. Taylor Lyon  
Environmental Engineer 
Fort Wayne Assembly General Motors LLC 
12200 Lafayette Center Rd 
Roanoke, In 46783 
 

Re: Violation Letter 
Fort Wayne Assembly General Motors LLC 
IND115304594 
Roanoke, Allen County 

 
Dear Ms. Lyon: 
 

On 6/18/2024, a representative of the Indiana Department of Environmental 
Management, Office of Land Quality, conducted an inspection of Fort Wayne Assembly General 
Motors LLC, located at 12200 Lafayette Center Rd, Roanoke, IN.  This inspection was 
conducted pursuant to IC 13-14-2-2.  For your information, and in accordance with IC 13-14-5, a 
summary of the inspection is provided below: 
 

Type of Inspection: Compliance Evaluation Inspection 
 

Results of Inspection: Violations were discovered and require a submittal. 
 

Within thirty (30) days of receipt of this letter, a written detailed explanation, 
documenting compliance with each of the requirements listed in the inspection report, must be 
submitted to this office.  Failure to respond adequately to this Violation Letter may result in a 
referral to the OLQ Enforcement Section.  Please direct any response to this letter and any 
questions to Kari Clevenger at 317-760-3702.  Thank you for your attention to this matter. 
 

Sincerely, 

 
Susan Lowry 
Section Chief 
Hazardous Waste Compliance Section 
Compliance Branch 



 
Enclosure 
cc:  Allen County Health Department 
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HAZARDOUS WASTE 
INSPECTION REPORT  
INDIANA DEPARTMENT OF 
ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT  

Inspector's Name: Kari Clevenger 

Others Present Susan Lowry Section Chief 
 

Date: Tuesday, June 18, 2024 
Time In: 9:36 AM 
Time Out: 4:55 PM 
Inspection Type Compliance Evaluation Inspection 

 

 
General Information 

Facility Information 
Facility Name Fort Wayne Assembly General Motors LLC 

Facility Location 
12200 Lafayette Center Rd 
Roanoke, IN 46783 
Allen County 

Facility Mailing Information Same Address as Facility 
Facility Contact Same as Primary Facility Contact 

Primary Facility Contact During Inspection 
Taylor Lyon 
Environmental Engineer 
260-519-8357 
taylor.lyon@gm.com 

Other Facility Contact(s) During Inspection 

Salutation First 
Name 

Last 
Name Title Phone 

Number Email 

Ms. Baliey Blinger Summer Intern   

Mr. Matt Arbuckle Environmental 
Supervisor   

Ms. Alexis McClure Resource 
Manager   

 

 
Facility ID 
EPA ID Number IND115304594 NAICS Code 33611, 336110 

 
Facility Status 

File Status Large Quantity Generator Other Activities 
Large Quantity 
Universal Waste 
Handler  
Hazardous Waste Tank 

 
Outstanding Issues 
Last Inspection Date 8/15/2019 

Previous Violations   Yes   No 
 

Details  EPA Inspection 
 

Inspection Narrative 
IDEM staff arrived at Fort Wayne Assembly General Motors LLC on June 18, 2024, to conduct a compliance evaluation 
inspection (CEI). Fort Wayne Assembly General Motors LLC is located at 12200 Lafayette Center Road, Roanoke, 
Indiana and is notified as a Large Quantity Generator. This site is part of IDEM’s Environmental Stewardship Program 
(ESP) and thus was given advanced notice of the inspection. IDEM staff met with Ms. Taylor Lyons, Environmental 
Engineer, Matt Arbuckle, Environmental Supervisor, and Bailey Blinger, Summer Intern. IDEM staff explained the reason 



Kari Clevenger Page 2 of 11Fort Wayne Assembly General Motors LLC/Tuesday, June 18, 
2024 
 
(VFC Index – Program Hazardous Waste      Document Type:  Field Inspection     Date:  Tuesday, June 18, 2024     HW ID#:  IND115304594)  
 

for the inspection and Ms. Lyons, Mr. Arbuckle, and Ms. Blinger participated in the walk through of the facility. Ms. Alexis 
McClure participated in the walkthrough of the CIS building and in the exit conference. 
 
Fort Wayne Assembly General Motors LLC assembles GM trucks at the facility and is 750 acres with approximately 4.3 
million square feet. The facility operates 3 shifts Monday through Friday and employs approximately 4,000 employees. 
  
The facility operates two paint booths, North and South Booths. The painting and clear coat is done in the North Booth 
and the pre-treatment and electrodeposition is done in the South Booth. Hazardous waste is generated mostly from the 
painting operations at the facility. Paint related activities include solvent from purging/cleaning of paint lines, and 
hazardous waste solids/debris from associated processes. Spent solvents from the spray booths and the purge pots at 
the facility are managed as a result of a 2009 Consent Agreement and Final Order (CAFO) with the U.S. EPA and are 
considered product until it reaches the 90-day hazardous waste tank. Several other hazardous waste streams are 
generated at the facility and are listed in the waste streams table in the report. 
 
It was indicated to IDEM staff that the facility submitted notification of hazardous waste secondary material (HSM) activity 
at the facility on June 11, 2024, in RCRAInfo. The facility intends to manage the reclaimed purge waste (D001, D018, 
D035) as HSM starting on June 30, 2024, so the purge waste was subject to full regulation as a hazardous waste at the 
time of this inspection.  
 
In the CIS building the facility had several 55-gallon containers of water treatment chemicals that the facility no longer 
intends to use at the facility. Four (4) of the 55-gallon containers were labeled “discard” and/or “expired chemical” (see 
photos 3-6), facility personnel indicated during the inspection that these chemicals are still considered a product and that 
would be used at another facility or used to pH adjust at the onsite wastewater treatment plant. Facility personnel 
indicated that the remaining chemicals were either going another facility for use or back to the manufacture. 
 
The inspection consisted of an opening conference, facility walkthrough, paperwork review, and closing conference. The 
facility walkthrough included the assembly, final repair, mechanical room, tool room, paint department including the paint 
kitchen, tote room, purge pots, paint department maintenance area, north and south paint booths, tank farm, CIS building 
(90-day storage area), and body shop. The paperwork review consisted of contingency plan, quick reference guide, 
manifests, LDRs, training records, notifications to local authorities, weekly inspections records, daily tank inspections, and 
tank integrity testing. 
 
Violations were discovered during the inspection, see DOV section for further details. Some violations were corrected 
after the inspection and documentation was provided. Outstanding violations require a submittal within 30 days to Kari 
Clevenger at kcleveng@idem.in.gov.  
 
 
Regulatory Status 

Observed Activity Large Quantity 
Generator Other Activities 

Used Oil Generator 
Universal Waste Handler 
Hazardous Waste Tank 

Documents Reviewed 

Contingency Plan 
Manifests 
Training Records 
Land Disposal Notification 
Purge Pot Processes 

Comments   
 
 

Waste Management 
Comments:    
Waste Stream(s) Information 
Waste Streams  

  Yes   No   Not Inspected   Not Applicable 
 

List waste stream(s) information that varies from the most recent Annual Report (Example: additional waste streams, waste streams no 
longer generated, significant increase/decrease in generation rate, etc.) 

mailto:kcleveng@idem.in.gov
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EPA Waste 
Codes Description Source Generation Rate Disposition 

D001, D018, 
D035 Reclaimed Purge Paint gun ~ 8300 gallons per 

month 
Gage Products Co., 
MID005338801 

D001, D005, 
D029, D035 Aerosol Can Fluid Aerosol Can 

Puncturing ~15 lbs. per month Tradebe, 
IND000646943 

D001, D018, 
D035 Paint related material Painting ~800 lbs. per month Tradebe, 

IND000646943 

D001, D018 Absorbents & Gasoline Spill cleanup ~60 lbs. per month Tradebe, 
IND000646943 

D007 Leather PPE PPE ~50 lbs. per month Tradebe, 
IND000646943 

D001, D018, 
U154 Flammable Solids Tank farm ~12 lbs. per month Tradebe, 

IND000646943 

D001, D018, 
U154 Flammable Liquids Tank Farm ~400 lbs. per month Tradebe, 

IND000646943 

D001 Hand Sanitizer Expired 12066 lbs. in 2023, 
varies per year 

Tradebe, 
IND000646943 

D009 Broken Fluorescent Lamps Maintenance Varies, ships twice a 
year 

Tradebe, 
IND000646943 

D002, D008 Leaking Lead Acid Batteries Assembly  Varies Tradebe, 
IND000646943 

PHARM Non-credible hazardous 
waste pharmaceuticals Clinic Varies, ships at least 

once a year 
Tradebe, 
IND000646943 

Universal Waste Fluorescent Bulbs Bulb 
Replacement 

Varies, ships twice a 
year Clean Earth 

Universal Watse Mixed Batteries Operations Varies, ships twice a 
year Clean Earth 

Non-hazardous 
waste Sealer Waste Operations Varies Landfill, Fort Wayne 

Non-hazardous Used Oil Maintenance  Varies Safety Kleen 

Non-hazardous  Oil Filters Maintenance Varies Safety Kleen 
 

Exempted/Excluded   Yes   No   Not Inspected   Not Applicable 
 

Explanation 

Explanation 

40 CFR 261.2 (c)(2)(ii) - Commercial chemical product, listed in 261.33, used as a fuel 

329 IAC 3.1-6-4 - Scrap metal 
 

Waste Management Areas 
Container Management Area(s)     Yes    No    Not inspected   Not applicable  

 

EPA Waste Codes Location Number Size Type of Container 

D007 CIS 1 55-gallon Steel 

D001, D005, D029, D035 CIS 1 55-gallon Steel 

D002, D008 CIS 1 55-gallon Plastic 
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D001, D018, D035 CIS 7 55-gallon Steel 

D001, D018, D035 CIS 4 55-gallon Steel 

D009 CIS 1 55-gallon Plastic 

Used Oil CIS 1 250-gallon Varies 

Oil Filters CIS 4 55-gallon Steel 
 

Satellite Area(s)    Yes    No    Not inspected    Not applicable  
 

EPA Waste Codes Location Comments 

D001, D005, D029, 
D035 CIS Aerosol can fluid, missing hazard 

indication for toxic. 

D002, D009 CIS Missing hazard indication for toxic 

D001, D005, D029, 
D035 Final Repair, Tool Room, Mechanical Room Aerosol cans, missing hazard indication 

for toxic 

D001, D018, D035 Final Repair, Paint Kitchen, Mechanical room, Tool 
Room, Paint Mixing,  Missing hazard indication for toxic 

D001, D018, U154 Tank Farm, Final Repair Missing hazard indication for toxic 
 

Tanks, Restricted Waste Sites, and Other Regulated Units  
  Yes    No    Not inspected    Not applicable  

 

EPA Waste 
Codes Type/Construction Location Quantity On-Site Size Unit 

D001, 
D018, 
D035 

Aboveground/welded 
stainless steel 

Tank Farm, Tank 19; Tank 
20 is not currently in use. 

32.6 inches; 
approximately 3,797.90 
gallons 

18,950 
gallons Tank 

 

 
 
Environmental Releases 
Visible Releases/Contamination/Discharges   Yes    No Release Observed 

 

  
 
 

Compliance Assistance 
P2 Information 
The following P2 suggestions could possibly save money, reduce waste and/or minimize risk.  You might consider having a P2 
assessment, or a voluntary technical assistance consultation from IDEM staff.  Please visit the agency’s P2 web site at 
http://www.in.gov/idem/5298.htm for additional information. 

Contact by IDEM OPPTA Requested   Yes    No  
 

  
P2 Suggestions   
 
 
Guidance Materials 
Guidance Materials Provided to Facility   
 
 

Checklist 
(Checked box indicates a compliance concern) 

Standards 
  Hazardous Waste Determination 

TSDF Permit Requirements 
  TSDF Permit Requirements 

http://www.in.gov/idem/5298.htm
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  Recordkeeping (SQG and LQG) 

  Identifying Hazardous Waste Numbers (SQG and 
LQG) 

  Generator Category Determination 

  Notification (SQG, LQG, Transporter, TSDF) 

  Release to the Environment, Disposal of Solid 
Waste 

  Illegal Dumping 

  Other Violation 
 

  Other Violation 
 

  
LQG Hazardous Waste Standards 

  Accumulate for 90 Days or Less 

  Container Condition 

  Compatibility of Waste with Container 

  Containers Closed 

  Container Handling 

  Central Accumulation Area Inspection 

  Ignitable or Reactive Wastes - Distance from 
Property Line 

  Ignitable or Reactive Wastes - Sources of 
Ignition/Reaction: "No Smoking" signs 

  Conditions for Accumulation of Incompatible 
Wastes 

  Container Labeled "Hazardous Waste" 

  Container Marked with Indication of Hazards 

  Containers Marked with Accumulation Start Date 

  Tank Integrity Assessment 

  Tank Containment and Detection of Releases 

  Tank General Operating Requirements 

  Tank Inspections 

  Tank Subpart BB - Monthly Pump and Valve 
Monitoring 

  Tank Subpart CC - Annual Inspection/Monitoring 

  Tank Labeled "Hazardous Waste" 

  Tank Marked with Indication of Hazards 

  Tank Documentation for 90-Day Accumulation 

  Maintenance and Operation of Facility 

  Required Equipment 

  Testing and Maintenance of Equipment 

  Aisle Space 

SQG Hazardous Waste Standards 
  Accumulate for 180 Days or Less 

  Accumulation Limit 

  Container Condition 

  Compatibility of Waste with Container 

  Containers Closed 

  Container Handling 

  Central Accumulation Area Inspections 

  Conditions for Accumulation of Incompatible Wastes 

  Container Labeled "Hazardous Waste" 

  Container Marked with Indication of Hazards 

  Container Marked with Accumulation Start Date 

  Tank Operating Conditions 

  Tank Inspections 

  Tank Labeled "Hazardous Waste" 

  Tank Marked with Indication of Hazardous 

  Tank Documentation for 180-Day Accumulation 

  Land Disposal Restrictions 

  Maintenance and Operation of Facility 

  Required Equipment 

  Testing and Maintenance of Equipment 

  Access to Communications or Alarm System 

  Aisle Space 

  Arrangements with Local Authorities 

  Arrangements with Local Authorities - Documentation 

  Emergency Coordinator 

  Emergency Information Posted 

  Employee Training 

  Other Small Quantity Generator Standards 
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  Arrangements with Local Authorities 

  Arrangements with Local Authorities - 
Documentation 

  Contingency Plan Developed 

  Content of Contingency Plan 

  Copies of Contingency Plan 

  Contingency Plan Quick Reference Guide 

  Emergency Coordinator 

  Personnel Training Program 

  Personnel Training - Complete Within Six Months 

  Personnel Training Annual Review 

  Personnel Training Documentation 

  Personnel Training Record Retention 

  Notification for Closure 

  Land Disposal Restrictions 

  Large Quantity Generator - Other Violations 
 

VSQG Standards 
  Hazardous Waste Generation Limit 

  Hazardous Waste Accumulation Limit 

  Hazardous Waste Determination 

  Proper Disposal 

  Prohibited Disposal of Liquids in Landfills 
 

  
Satellite Accumulation – SQG and LQG 

  Quantity Limits, Point of Generation, Under Control 
of Operator 

  Container Condition 

  Compatibility with Container 

  Incompatible Wastes 

  Containers Closed 

  Container Labeled "Hazardous Waste" 

  Container Marked with Indication of Hazards 

  Preparedness and Prevention 

  Excess Generation 
 

Manifest and Recordkeeping - LQG and SQG 
  Manifest General Requirements 

  Use of the Manifest 
 

  
Episodic Generation 

  Notification 

  EPA ID Number 

  Accumulate for 60 Days or Less 

  Accumulation Prohibitions 

  Container Labeling 

  Tank Labeling and Recordkeeping 

  Recordkeeping 

  Preparedness and Prevention 

  Other Violation 
 

Hazardous Secondary Materials 
  Reclaimed Under Control of the Generator 

  Contained 

  Speculative Accumulation 

  Notice 

  Documentation of Legitimacy Determination 

  Emergency Preparedness and Response 

  Emergency Procedures (Accumulates 6,000 kg or Less) 

  Emergency Procedures (Accumulates Greater than 6,000 
kg) 

  Other Violation 
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Solvent-Contaminated Wipes – Disposal 

  Container Management (Non-leaking containers) 

  Closed Containers 

  Labeling 

  Accumulation Time 

  No Free Liquids 

  Free Liquids Management 

  Documentation 

  Final Disposition 
 

Solvent-Contaminated Wipes - Laundered or Dry Cleaned 
  Container Management (Non-leaking containers) 

  Closed Containers 

  Labeling 

  Accumulation Time 

  No Free Liquids 

  Free Liquids Management 

  Documentation 

  Clean Water Act 
 

  
Universal Waste – All Facilities 

  Universal Waste Labeling 

  Containers - Closed, Good Condition, No Evidence 
of Leaks 

  Universal Waste - Bulb Crushing Prohibition 
 

Used Oil – All Facilities 
  Rebuttable Presumption Applies 

  Containers and Tanks in Good Condition 

  Containers/Tank Labeling 

  Release Clean Up and Containment 

  Burning Restrictions - Generated On-site or DIY, .5M 
BTU 

 

 
Description of Violation(s) 

LQG HAZARDOUS WASTE STANDARDS 

CONTAINER MARKED WITH INDICATION OF HAZARDS 
CITATION: 
40 CFR 262.17(a)(5)(i)(B): A large quantity generator must mark or label its containers with an indication of the hazards 
of the contents (examples include, but are not limited to, the applicable hazardous waste characteristic(s) (i.e., ignitable, 
corrosive, reactive, toxic); hazard communication consistent with the Department of Transportation requirements at 49 
CFR part 172 subpart E (labeling) or subpart F (placarding); a hazard statement or pictogram consistent with the 
Occupational Safety and Health Administration Hazard Communication Standard at 29 CFR 1910.1200; or a chemical 
hazard label consistent with the National Fire Protection Association code 704). 

DETAILS: 
IDEM staff observed the following containers in the 90-day storage area that are missing the indication of hazard for toxic. 
 
Four (4) 55-gallon containers of “paint & purge solvent”, see photo 9. 
Four (4) 55-gallon containers of “paint mix”, see photo 10. 
Seven (7) 55-gallon containers of “paint”, see photo 11. 
 
Violations were corrected after the inspection and provided by email that was received 6/20/2024. 

REQUIRED ACTION: 
In the future, ensure that all hazardous waste containers are marked or labeled with an indication of its hazards. 

TANK CONTAINMENT AND DETECTION OF RELEASES 
CITATION: 
40 CFR 262.17(a)(2) referencing 40 CFR 265.193 (Tank Secondary Containment Systems): (a) In order to prevent the 
release of hazardous waste or hazardous waste constituents to the environment, secondary containment that meets the 
requirements of this section must be provided (except as provided in paragraphs (f) and (g) of this section).: (1) For all 
new and existing tank systems or components, prior to their being put into service. (2) For tank systems that store or treat 
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materials that become hazardous wastes, within 2 years of the hazardous waste listing, or when the tank system has 
reached 15 years of age, whichever comes later.  
(b) Secondary containment must be (1) Designed, installed, and operated to prevent any migration of wastes or 
accumulated liquid out of the system to the soil, groundwater, or surface water at any time during the use of the tank 
system; and (2) Capable of detecting and collecting releases and accumulated liquids until the collected material is 
removed.  
(c) Secondary containment systems must be at a minimum: (1) Constructed of or lined with materials that are compatible 
with the waste…(2) Placed on a foundation or base capable of providing support to the secondary containment system… 
(3) Provided with a leak detection system that is designed and operated so that it will detect the failure of either the 
primary and secondary containment structure or any release of hazardous waste or accumulated liquid in the secondary 
containment system within 24 hours. (4) Sloped or otherwise designed or operated to drain and remove liquids resulting 
from leaks, spills, or precipitation. Spilled or leaked waste and accumulated precipitation must be removed from the 
secondary containment system within 24 hours, or in as timely a manner as is possible to prevent harm to human health 
or the environment… 
 
(e)(1) External liner systems must be designed or operated to contain 100 percent of the capacity of the largest tank 
within its boundary; designed or operated to prevent run-on or infiltration of precipitation into the secondary containment 
system unless the collection system has sufficient excess capacity to contain run-on or infiltration. Such additional 
capacity must be sufficient to contain precipitation from a 25-year, 24-hour rainfall event; free of cracks or gaps; and 
designed and installed to completely surround the tank and to cover all surrounding earth likely to come into contact with 
the waste if released from the tank(s) (i.e., capable of preventing lateral as well as vertical migration of the waste). 
 
(e)(2) Vault systems must be designed or operated to contain 100 percent of the capacity of the largest tank within its 
boundary; designed or operated to prevent run-on or infiltration of precipitation into the secondary containment system 
unless the collection system has sufficient excess capacity to contain run-on or infiltration. Such additional capacity must 
be sufficient to contain precipitation from a 25-year, 24-hour rainfall event; constructed with chemical-resistant water 
stops in place at all joints (if any); provided with an impermeable interior coating or lining that is compatible with the 
stored waste and that will prevent migration of waste into the concrete. 

DETAILS: 
IDEM staff observed several cracks in the hazardous waste tank’s secondary containment liner (see photos 7 & 8). 
Facility personnel indicated that the cracks had been present since winter and that no action had been taken since the 
concrete was free from cracks and the facility was switching to managing the tank as hazardous secondary material 
(HSM) starting on June 30, 2024. Once the facility switches to HSM they facility intends on taking the secondary 
containment liner  
 
Violations were corrected after the inspection and provided by email that was received 6/20/2024. 

REQUIRED ACTION: 
Ensure a secondary containment system that complies with 40 CFR 265.193. Once the facility manages switches to 
hazardous secondary material secondary containment will no longer be required.  

TANK INSPECTIONS 
CITATION: 
40 CFR 262.17(a)(2) referencing 40 CFR 265.195: (a) The owner or operator must inspect, where present, at least once 
each operating day, data gathered from monitoring and leak detection equipment to ensure that the tank system is being 
operated according to its design. (b) Except as noted under paragraph (c) of this section, the owner or operator must 
inspect at least once each operating day: (1) Overfill/spill control equipment to ensure that it is in good working order; (2) 
Above ground portions of the tank system, if any, to detect corrosion or releases of waste; and (3) The construction 
materials and area immediately surrounding the externally accessible portion of the tank system, including the secondary 
containment system, to detect erosion or signs of releases of hazardous waste . 
(c) Owners or operators of tank systems that either use leak detection equipment to alert facility personnel to leaks, or 
implement established workplace practices to ensure leaks are promptly identified, must inspect at least weekly those 
areas described in paragraphs (b)(1) through (3) of this section. Use of the alternate inspection schedule must be 
documented in the facility's operating record. This documentation must include a description of the established workplace 
practices at the facility. (e) Ancillary equipment that is not provided with secondary containment, as described in 
§265.193(f)(1) through (4), must be inspected at least once each operating day. 
(g) The owner or operator must document in the operating record of the facility an inspection of those items in paragraphs 
(a) and (b). 



Kari Clevenger Page 9 of 11Fort Wayne Assembly General Motors LLC/Tuesday, June 18, 
2024 
 
(VFC Index – Program Hazardous Waste      Document Type:  Field Inspection     Date:  Tuesday, June 18, 2024     HW ID#:  IND115304594)  
 

DETAILS: 
IDEM staff observed several cracks in the tank secondary containment liner and a review of the tank daily inspections 
from March, April, and May 2024 indicated that the containment was free from cracks. Facility personnel indicated that 
the cracks had been present since winter and that no action had been taken since the concrete was free from cracks and 
the facility was switching to managing the tank as hazardous secondary material (HSM) on June 30, 2024. The June 
inspection log was filled out with “N’s” in the majority of the columns, however facility personnel indicated that this was in 
preparation for the HSM switch over and was not filled out correctly. Daily inspections are inadequate due to being 
inconsistent and not documenting cracks to the liner and corrective actions.  

REQUIRED ACTION: 
Ensure that daily inspections conducted identify and document construction materials and area immediately surrounding 
the externally accessible portion of the tank system, including the secondary containment system, to detect erosion or 
signs of releases of hazardous waste. Once the facility switches to HSM tank inspections will no longer be required. 

PERSONNEL TRAINING PROGRAM 
CITATION: 
40 CFR 262.17(a)(7)(i)(A): Facility personnel must successfully complete a program of classroom instruction, online 
training (e.g. computer-based or electronic), or on-the-job training that teaches them to perform their duties in a way that 
ensures compliance with this part. The large quantity generator must ensure that this program includes all the elements 
described in the document required under paragraph (a)(7)(iv) of this section.  
(B) This program must be directed by a person trained in hazardous waste management processes and must include 
instruction which teaches facility personnel hazardous waste management procedures (including contingency plan 
implementation) relevant to the positions in which they are employed. 
(C) At a minimum, the training program must be designed to ensure facility personnel are able to respond effectively to 
emergencies by familiarizing them with emergency procedures, emergency equipment, and emergency systems, 
including, where applicable: (1) Procedures for using, inspecting, repairing, and replacing facility emergency and 
monitoring equipment; (2) Key parameters for automatic waste feed cut-off systems; (3) Communications or alarm 
systems; (4) Response to fires or emergencies; (5) Response to ground-water contamination incidents; and (6) Shutdown 
of operations. 
(D) For facility employees that receive emergency response training pursuant to OSHA regulations 29 CFR 
1910.120(p)(8) and 1910.120(q), the large quantity generator is not required to provide separate emergency response 
training pursuant to this section, provided that the overall facility training meets all the conditions of exemption in this 
section. 

DETAILS: 
A review of the tank daily inspections from March, April, and May 2024 indicated that the containment was free from 
cracks. Facility personnel indicated that the cracks had been present since winter and that no action had been taken 
since the concrete was free from cracks and the facility was switching to managing the tank as hazardous secondary 
material on June 30, 2024. The June inspection log was filled out with “N’s” in the majority of the columns, however 
facility personnel indicated that this was in preparation for the HSM switch over and was not filled out correctly. Personnel 
have not been adequately trained to conduct inspections and identify corrective actions. 

REQUIRED ACTION: 
Ensure that facility personnel are adequately trained to conduct inspections that meet the requirements in 40 CFR 
262.17(a)(7)(i)(A). 

SATELLITE ACCUMULATION - SQG AND LQG 
CONTAINER MARKED WITH INDICATION OF HAZARDS 
CITATION: 
40 CFR 262.15(a)(5)(ii): A generator must mark or label its (satellite) containers with an indication of the hazards of the 
contents (examples include, but are not limited to, the applicable hazardous waste characteristic(s) (i.e., ignitable, 
corrosive, reactive, toxic); hazard communication consistent with the Department of Transportation requirements at 49 
CFR part 172 subpart E (labeling) or subpart F (placarding); a hazard statement or pictogram consistent with the 
Occupational Safety and Health Administration Hazard Communication Standard at 29 CFR 1910.1200; or a chemical 
hazard label consistent with the National Fire Protection Association code 704). 

DETAILS: 
IDEM staff observed the following satellite accumulation areas that did not have the hazard indication for toxic. 
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Mechanical Room: SAA1 (one (1) 55-gallon container of aerosol cans) 
Tool Room: SAA5 (one (1) 55-gallon container of aerosol cans) 
Final Repair: SAA9 (one (1) 55-gallon container of absorbents w/gasoline), SAA11 (one (1) 55-gallon container of gas 
rags), SAA13 (one (1) 55-gallon container of paint cans), SAA15 (one (1) 55-gallon container of aerosol cans), SAA16 
(one (1) 55-gallon container of paint pens) 
CIS Building:  Aerosol Cans (one (1) -gallon container), SAA41 (one (1) -gallon container of leaking lead acid batteries) 
Tank Farm: SAA42 (one (1) -gallon container of waste gasoline, photo 13) and SAA43 (one (1) 55-gallon container of 
tank farm solids, rags, etc., see photo 12) 
Paint Mix: SAA52, SAA53, SAA54, SAA55 (paint & purge solvent) 
 
Violations were corrected after the inspection and provided by email that was received 6/20/2024. 

REQUIRED ACTION: 
Ensure to mark or label all satellite hazardous waste containers with the indication of the hazards of the contents. 
 
 

Inspection Documentation 

Photographs 
  Yes 

  No 
 

Map   Maps 
 

GPS Location 
Collected   

  Yes 

  No 
 

Analytical Screening 
Conducted   

  Yes 

  No 
 

  

Lab Sample    
  Yes  

  No 
 

  

 
Inspection Results/Actions 

Comments: 

 As a best management practice, facility personnel should refrain from labeling product containers as 
“expired chemical” or “discard” if the facility does not intend to dispose of the material. Facility personnel 
should be able demonstrate that the product has a legitimate use and can be used at the facility or sent to 
another facility for use. If the material is discarded it would require proper waste determination and disposal.  

Inspection Results 
Violations were discovered and require a submittal. 
Multi-Media Concerns   
No concerns noted 
 

Finalize Inspection 
Written Summary of Inspection Notice of Inspection and Verbal Summary Provided 

Inspector Information 

Printed/Typed Name Kari Clevenger 
Phone Number:  317-760-3702 
Email Address:  kcleveng@idem.in.gov 

Signature: Obtained on the Inspection Verification/Findings Form 
 

Facility Representative Signature Printed/Typed Name: Taylor Lyon 
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(VFC Index – Program HW     Document Type: Field Inspection     Date: Tuesday, June 18, 2024 EPA ID #: IND115304594) 

 

Photo Table: Fort Wayne Assembly General Motors LLC 

 

 

Number 1 

Description 

One (1) 55-gallon container of “FUELSOLV 
PB2020” located in the CIS building. Identified by 

facility personnel as a product used to stabilize 
diesel fuel. 

Photographer Kari Clevenger 

Facility Name Fort Wayne Assembly General Motors LLC 

Photo Date 6/18/2024 

Others 
Susan Lowry- IDEM 

Taylor Lyon - Fort Wayne GM LLC 
Matt Arbuckle - Fort Wayne GM LLC 

 

 

 

Number 2 

Description Additional image of the 55-gallon container from 
photo 1. 

Photographer Kari Clevenger 

Facility Name Fort Wayne Assembly General Motors LLC 

Photo Date 6/18/2024 

Others 
Susan Lowry- IDEM 

Taylor Lyon - Fort Wayne GM LLC 
Matt Arbuckle - Fort Wayne GM LLC 
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(VFC Index – Program HW     Document Type: Field Inspection     Date: Tuesday, June 18, 2024 EPA ID #: IND115304594) 

 

 

 

 

Number 3 

Description 

Two (2) 55-gallon containers of “ZIRCOBOND 
CONTROL #3” and two (2) 55-gallon containers of 

“CHEMKLEEN PH ADJUST DOWN” stored in 
the CIS building. Containers were marked “Please 

Discard” and “Expired Chemical”. Facility 
personnel stated they would use this. 

Photographer Kari Clevenger 

Facility Name Fort Wayne Assembly General Motors LLC 

Photo Date 6/18/2024 

Others 
Susan Lowry- IDEM 

Taylor Lyon - Fort Wayne GM LLC 
Matt Arbuckle - Fort Wayne GM LLC 

 

 

 

Number 4 

Description 
Top view of containers in photo 3 and view of the 
“Please Discard” and “Expired Chemical” label. 

Facility personnel stated they would use this.  

Photographer Kari Clevenger 

Facility Name Fort Wayne Assembly General Motors LLC 

Photo Date 6/18/2024 

Others 
Susan Lowry- IDEM 

Taylor Lyon - Fort Wayne GM LLC 
Matt Arbuckle - Fort Wayne GM LLC 
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(VFC Index – Program HW     Document Type: Field Inspection     Date: Tuesday, June 18, 2024 EPA ID #: IND115304594) 

 

 

 

Number 5 

Description Label for the “ZORNBOND Control #3” from 
photo 3. 

Photographer Kari Clevenger 

Facility Name Fort Wayne Assembly General Motors LLC 

Photo Date 6/18/2024 

Others 
Susan Lowry- IDEM 

Taylor Lyon - Fort Wayne GM LLC 
Matt Arbuckle - Fort Wayne GM LLC 

 

 

 

Number 6 

Description Label for the “CHEMKLEEN PH ADJUST 
DOWN” from photo 3. 

Photographer Kari Clevenger 

Facility Name Fort Wayne Assembly General Motors LLC 

Photo Date 6/18/2024 

Others 
Susan Lowry- IDEM 

Taylor Lyon - Fort Wayne GM LLC 
Matt Arbuckle - Fort Wayne GM LLC 
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(VFC Index – Program HW     Document Type: Field Inspection     Date: Tuesday, June 18, 2024 EPA ID #: IND115304594) 

 

 

 

Number 7 

Description Cracks in liner of the hazardous waste tank 
secondary containment area. 

Photographer Kari Clevenger 

Facility Name Fort Wayne Assembly General Motors LLC 

Photo Date 6/18/2024 

Others 
Susan Lowry- IDEM 

Taylor Lyon - Fort Wayne GM LLC 
Matt Arbuckle - Fort Wayne GM LLC 

 

 

 

Number 8 

Description 
Additional crack in liner not depicted in photo 7 of 
the hazardous waste tank secondary containment 

area. 

Photographer Kari Clevenger 

Facility Name Fort Wayne Assembly General Motors LLC 

Photo Date 6/18/2024 

Others 
Susan Lowry- IDEM 

Taylor Lyon - Fort Wayne GM LLC 
Matt Arbuckle - Fort Wayne GM LLC 
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(VFC Index – Program HW     Document Type: Field Inspection     Date: Tuesday, June 18, 2024 EPA ID #: IND115304594) 

 

 

 

Number 9 

Description 
Four (4) 55-gallon containers of “paint & purge 
solvent” waste located in the CIS building are 

missing the hazard indication for toxic. 

Photographer Kari Clevenger 

Facility Name Fort Wayne Assembly General Motors LLC 

Photo Date 6/18/2024 

Others 
Susan Lowry- IDEM 

Taylor Lyon - Fort Wayne GM LLC 
Matt Arbuckle - Fort Wayne GM LLC 

 

 

 

Number 10 

Description 
Four (4) 55-gallon containers of “paint mix” waste 
located in the CIS building are missing the hazard 

indication for toxic. 

Photographer Kari Clevenger 

Facility Name Fort Wayne Assembly General Motors LLC 

Photo Date 6/18/2024 

Others 
Susan Lowry- IDEM 

Taylor Lyon - Fort Wayne GM LLC 
Matt Arbuckle - Fort Wayne GM LLC 
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(VFC Index – Program HW     Document Type: Field Inspection     Date: Tuesday, June 18, 2024 EPA ID #: IND115304594) 

 

 

 

Number 11 

Description 
Seven (7) 55-gallon containers of “paint” waste 

located in the CIS building are missing the hazard 
indication for toxic. 

Photographer Kari Clevenger 

Facility Name Fort Wayne Assembly General Motors LLC 

Photo Date 6/18/2024 

Others 
Susan Lowry- IDEM 

Taylor Lyon - Fort Wayne GM LLC 
Matt Arbuckle - Fort Wayne GM LLC 

 

 

 

Number 12 

Description 
One (1) 55-gallon satellite accumulation container 
of “tank farm solids” located near the tank farm. 

Container missing the hazard indication for toxic. 

Photographer Kari Clevenger 

Facility Name Fort Wayne Assembly General Motors LLC 

Photo Date 6/18/2024 

Others 
Susan Lowry- IDEM 

Taylor Lyon - Fort Wayne GM LLC 
Matt Arbuckle - Fort Wayne GM LLC 

 

 

 



Page 7 of 8 
 

(VFC Index – Program HW     Document Type: Field Inspection     Date: Tuesday, June 18, 2024 EPA ID #: IND115304594) 

 

 

 

Number 13 

Description 
One (1) 55-gallon satellite accumulation container 

of “waste gasoline” located near the tank farm. 
Container missing the hazard indication for toxic. 

Photographer Kari Clevenger 

Facility Name Fort Wayne Assembly General Motors LLC 

Photo Date 6/18/2024 

Others 
Susan Lowry- IDEM 

Taylor Lyon - Fort Wayne GM LLC 
Matt Arbuckle - Fort Wayne GM LLC 

 

 

 

Number 14 

Description Example of one of the purge pots associated with 
paint in the south paint booth. 

Photographer Kari Clevenger 

Facility Name Fort Wayne Assembly General Motors LLC 

Photo Date 6/18/2024 

Others 
Susan Lowry- IDEM 

Taylor Lyon - Fort Wayne GM LLC 
Matt Arbuckle - Fort Wayne GM LLC 
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(VFC Index – Program HW     Document Type: Field Inspection     Date: Tuesday, June 18, 2024 EPA ID #: IND115304594) 

 

 

 

Number 15 

Description Two (2) “Hazardous Waste Pharmaceuticals” bins 
located in the clinic. 

Photographer Kari Clevenger 

Facility Name Fort Wayne Assembly General Motors LLC 

Photo Date 6/18/2024 

Others 
Susan Lowry- IDEM 

Taylor Lyon - Fort Wayne GM LLC 
Matt Arbuckle - Fort Wayne GM LLC 

 

 

 

Number 16 

Description Close up of the labeling of the “Hazardous Waste 
Pharmaceutical” container.  

Photographer Kari Clevenger 

Facility Name Fort Wayne Assembly General Motors LLC 

Photo Date 6/18/2024 

Others 
Susan Lowry- IDEM 

Taylor Lyon - Fort Wayne GM LLC 
Matt Arbuckle - Fort Wayne GM LLC 

 

 

 































































































MAY 2 2 2009

UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
REGION 5

IN THE MATFER OF: )

General Motors Automotive - North America

300 Renaissance Center
Detroit, Michigan 48265-3000

EPA ID MID 005 356 902
MID 000 718 544
MID 005 356 928

OHD 041 063 074
KSD 981 126 253
MOT.,300 010 261
DED 0023692905
GA GAD003310810

Respondent.

) DOCKET NOs.
) RCRA-03-2009-0099
) RCRA-04-2009-4007(b)
) RCRA-05-2004-0001
) RCRA-07-2009-0001
) Honorable Barbara A. Gunning
) Administrative Law Judge

CONSENT AGREEMENT

The United States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) by and through the under

signed Complainants, and Respondent, General Motors Automotive — North America (GM),

agree that settlement of the matters addressed herein without further delay is in their respective

interests and in the public interest, and having consented to the entry to this Consent Agreement

and the attached Final Order before taking any additional testimony and without further

adjudication of any issues of law or fact herein, Complainants and Respondent agree to comply

with the terms of this Consent Agreement and Final Order (CAFO).

I. Preliminary Statement

1. This is a civil administrative action instituted under Sections 3008(a) and (g) of the

Solid Waste Disposal Act, as amended by the Resource Conservation Recovery Act of 1976 and

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)

MAY 262009

REGIONAL HEARING CLERK
U.S. ENVIRONMENTAL
PROTECTION AGENCY



the Hazardous and Solid Waste Amendments of 1984 (HSWA) (collectively “RCRA”), 42

U.S.C. § 6928(a) and (g), and the Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing the Administrative

Assessment of Civil Penalties, Issuance of Compliance or Corrective Action Orders, and the

Revocation, Termination or Suspension of Permits (“Consolidated Rules”), 40 C.F.R. Part 22.

2. Complainants in this matter are:

(a) Abraham Ferdas, Director, Land and Chemicals Division, Region 3;

(b) Caroline Y.F. Robinson, Chief, RCRA & OPA Enforcement and Compliance

Branch, Region 4;

(c) Margaret Guerriero, Director, Land and Chemicals Division, Region 5; and

(d) Donald Toensing, Chief, RCRA Enforcement and State Programs Branch, Region

7.

3. Complainants are, by lawful delegation, authorized to institute and settle civil

administrative actions brought pursuant to Sections 3008(a) and (g) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. §*

6928(a) and (g).

4. Jurisdiction for this action is conferred upon EPA by Sections 3006(b) and 3008 of

RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6926(b) and 6928.

5. Pursuant to Section 3006 of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6926, the Administrator of EPA

(Administrator) may authorize a state to administer the RCRA hazardous waste program in lieu

of the federal program when the Administrator finds that the state program meets certain

conditions. The States of Delaware, Georgia, Michigan, Ohio, Kansas and Missouri have been

authorized to administer hazardous waste programs pursuant to Subtitle C of RCRA.

6. Although EPA has granted the States of Delaware, Georgia, Michigan, Ohio,

Kansas and Missouri authority to enforce their own hazardous waste programs, EPA maintains

2



jurisdiction to enforce independent enforcement actions pursuant to Section 3008(a) of RCRA,

42 U.S.C. § 6928(a).

7. Pursuant to Section 3008 of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6928, the Administrator may issue

an order assessing a civil penalty for any past or current violation and/or requiring compliance

immediately or within a specified time period.

8. Pursuant to Section 3007 of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6927, representatives of the

Administrator may inspect at reasonable times any establishment or other place where hazardous

wastes are or have been generated, stored, treated, disposed of, or transported from any

establishment or other place.

9. Any violation of regulations promulgated pursuant to Subtitle C of RCRA, 42

U.S.C. § 6921-6939(e), or of any state provision authorized pursuant to Section 3006 of

RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6926, constitutes a violation of RCRA, subject to the assessment of civil

penalties and issuance of compliance orders as provided by Section 3008 of RCRA, 42 U.S.C.

§ 6928.

10. Pursuant to Section 3006(g) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6926(g), the requirements

established by HSWA are immediately effective in a state upon their federal effective date

regardless of such state’s authorization status. EPA has jurisdiction immediately to implement

and enforce those portions of the HSWA requirements before any such state receives final

authorization, including regulations at 40 C.F.R. Part 265, Subparts BB, CC and J.

11. Pursuant to Sections 2002 and 3002 of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6912 and 6922, EPA

promulgated rules pertaining to generators of hazardous waste as set forth at 40 C.F.R. Part 262.

12. Pursuant to Sections 2002 and 3004 of RCRA, 42, U.S.C. § 6912 and 6924, EPA

promulgated rules pertaining to owners and/or operators of treatment, storage and disposal

3



facilities as set forth at 40 C.F.R. Parts 264 and 265.

13. Pursuant to Section 3004(n) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6924(n), EPA promulgated

regulations to monitor and control air emissions at certain hazardous waste treatment, storage,

and disposal facilities. 40 C.F.R. Parts 264 and 265, Subparts AA, BB, and CC.

14. Pursuant to Section 3004 of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6924, EPA promulgated

regulations governing the management and monitoring of tanks and tank systems that store or

treat hazardous waste. 40 C.F.R. Parts 264 and 265, Subpart J.

15. Respondent, GM, is incorporated in and doing business in the State of Delaware.

Respondent also does business in Georgia, Illinois, Michigan, Ohio, Kansas and Missouri and is

a “person” as that term is defined in 42 U.S.C. § 6903(15).

16. U.S. EPA, Region 5, filed a Complaint in RCRA-05-2004-0001 (“Complaint”) in

this matter on October 17, 2003, alleging that Respondent had violated and was continuing to

violate RCRA regulations set forth in 40 C.F.R. Parts 264 and 265, Subparts J, BB and CC (or

the equivalent authorized State regulations) in its automotive painting operations at its facilities

in Pontiac, Michigan; Orion, Michigan and Moraine, Ohio.

17. On or about November 21, 2003, Respondent filed an Answer in RCRA-05-2004-

0001.

18. A hearing was held in RCRA-5-2004-0001 from June 20, 2005 through June 30,

2005 regarding the claims alleged in the Complaint. The Presiding Administrative Law Judge,

the Honorable Barbara A. Gunning, issued an Initial Decision on April 14, 2006, and Respondent

appealed that Initial Decision to the Environmental Appeals Board on May 19, 2006. On June

20, 2008, the EAB issued its Order remanding this matter to Judge Gunning for further

consideration.
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19. In 2006 and 2007 EPA issued many Section 3007 RCRA Information Requests (42

U.S.C. § 6927) to some of Respondent’s automobile and truck assembly plants (Assembly

Plants) throughout the United States concerning RCRA Subpart J, BB and CC compliance for

use, storage and disposal of Purge Mixture as defined herein.

20. EPA and/or authorized states have conducted RCRA inspections of several of

Respondent’s Assembly Plants for RCRA Subpart J, BB and CC compliance since the late

1990’s and EPA has issued several Notices of Violation against Respondent.

21. This Consent Agreement is entered into pursuant to Sections 3008(a) of RCRA, 42

U.S.C. § 6928(a), and the Consolidated Rules. Specifically, the Complainants and the

Respondent (collectively referred to as the “Parties”), have determined that settlement is

consistent with the provisions and objectives of RCRA and applicable regulations and,

therefore, have agreed to the terms of this written Consent Agreement in accordance with 40

C.F.R. § 22.18(b).

22. EPA has provided notice concerning this action to the appropriate authorized states

(listed in paragraph 5, above), pursuant to Section 3008(a)(2) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6928(a)(2).

23. The Consolidated Rules provide that where the parties agree to settlement of one or

more causes of action before the filing of a complaint, a proceeding may be simultaneously

commenced and concluded by the issuance of a CAFO. 40 C.F.R. § 22.13(b) and 22.18(b)(2).

In addition to the allegations set forth in the Complaint, this CAFO simultaneously commences

and concludes new proceedings brought by Regions 3, 4, 5 and 7.

24. For purposes of this proceeding, Respondent admits the jurisdictional allegations of

the Complaint and this CAFO and agrees not to contest EPA’s jurisdiction with respect to

execution of this Consent Agreement, issuance of the attached Final Order, or the enforcement
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thereof. 40 C.F.R. § 22.18.

25. Respondent waives any and all rights under any provision of law to any additional

hearing on the allegations contained in the Complaint and this CAFO. Respondent also waives

any right to contest the allegations in the Complaint and this CAFO and any right to appeal this

Consent Agreement or the Final Order that accompanies this Consent Agreement. See 40 C.F.R.

§ 22.18.

26. For the purposes of this proceeding, Respondent neither admits nor denies the

specific factual allegations contained in the Complaint or otherwise contained in this CAFO and

does not contest the conclusions and determinations contained in this CAFO. 40 C.F.R.

§ 22.18(b).

27. Respondent agrees to pay the civil penalty specified in Section VII of this Consent

Agreement. 40 C.F.R. 22.18(b).

II. General Factual Basis

28. Respondent is and was at all times relevant to this matter the owner and operator

of the following facilities: the Pontiac East Assembly Plant, also known as the “Pontiac

Assembly Center” (“Pontiac facility”), 2100 South Opdyke Road, Pontiac, MI 48341-3 155 [MID

005 356 902]; the Orion Assembly Plant (“Orion facility”), 4555 Giddings Road, Lake Orion,

Michigan 48359 [MID 000 718 544]; the Moraine Assembly Plant (“Moraine facility”), 2601

West Stroop Road, Moraine, Ohio 45439 [OHD 041 063 074]; the Wilmington Assembly Plant

(“Wilmington facility”), 801 Boxwood, Wilmington, Delaware 19804 [DED 0023692905];

Doraville, 3900 Motors Industrial Way, Doraville, Georgia 30360 (“Doraville facility”) [EPA

ID# GADOO33 10810]; the Fairfax Assembly Plant (“Fairfax facility”), 3201 Fairfax Trafficway,

Kansas City, Kansas 66115 [KSD 981 126 253]; the Wentzville Assembly Plant (“Wentzville
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facility”), 1500 East Route “A”, Wentzville, Missouri 63385 [MOT 300 010 2611; the GM

Lansing Car Assembly Plant (“Lansing Facility”),401 N. Verlinden Avenue, Lansing, Michigan

48915 [MID 005 356 928] (These facilities are collectively referred to as “the Facilities”).

29. Respondent has filed Notifications of Hazardous Waste Activities (Notifications)

for the Facilities pursuant to Section 3010 of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6930. The Notifications

specify the type of hazardous waste activity Respondent is engaged in at each of its Facilities and

identify the hazardous waste(s) managed at each Facility.

30. The painting operations at each of Respondent’s Facilities identified in paragraph

28 above are substantially similar to the painting operations described in paragraphs 15 through

27 of the Complaint. The parties refer to the mixture of purge solvent, clearcoat, primer and

paint which GM generates when it cleans its paint applicators and manifolds at each of the

Facilities as “Purge Mixture.”

31. EPA has conducted inspections at each of Respondent’s Facilities and has issued

information requests to Respondent pursuant to RCRA § 3007 regarding some of those Facilities.

32. The Parties have engaged in settlement negotiations and have agreed that, in

general, circumstances similar to those alleged in paragraphs 53 through 188 of the Complaint

exist at each of Respondent’s Facilities; and have further agreed that, to the extent alleged

violations of 40 C.F.R. Part 265, Subparts J, BB and CC (or the applicable analogous

requirement of any applicable authorized state program) now exist or have existed at those

Facilities, those alleged violations should be addressed in this CAFO.

33. Entry of this CAFO is an appropriate means of resolving the violations alleged in

the Complaint; and without the issuance of further administrative complaints, entry of this

CAFO is an appropriate means of settling Complainants’ civil claims for penalties under RCRA
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Section 3008(a), 42 U.S.C. § 6928(a), as alleged below at Respondent’s other Facilities

identified in paragraph 28 of this CAFO.

III. Region 3 Allegations

A. Wilmington Assembly Plant - Owning and/or operating a hazardous
waste storage facility without a permit or interim status

34. The allegations of Paragraphs 1 though 33, above, are incorporated by reference

as if fully set forth at length herein.

35. The Delaware Regulations Governing Hazardous Waste (“DRGHW”) are

authorized pursuant to Section 3006(b) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6926(b) (53 Fed. Reg. 23837

(June 8, 1984), 61 Fed. Reg. 41345 (August 8, 1996), 63 Fed. Reg. 44152 (August 18, 1998), 65

Fed. Reg. 42871 (July 12, 2000), 67 Fed. Reg. 51478 (August 8, 2002), 69 Fed. Reg. 10171

(March 4, 2004), and 69 Fed. Reg. 60091 (October 7, 2004)). Certain provisions of Delaware’s

hazardous waste management program, through the authorizations referenced in the immediately

preceding sentence, have become requirements of Subtitle C of RCRA and are, accordingly,

enforceable by EPA pursuant to Section 3008(a) and (g) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6928(a) and (g).

Section 3005(a) and (e) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6925(a) and (e), and DRGHW Part 122 provide,

in pertinent part, that a person may not own or operate a hazardous waste storage, treatment, or

disposal facility unless such person has first obtained a permit for the facility or has qualified for

interim status for the facility.

36. DRGHW § 262.34(a) provides that a generator may accumulate hazardous wastes

on-site for 90 days or less without a permit or without interim status provided that certain

conditions are met, including, inter alia, the condition in DRGHW § 262.34.(a)(1)(ii) that a

generator who accumulates such hazardous waste in tanks must comply with the applicable

requirements of Subpart I of DRGHW Part 265.
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37. Tanks 1 and 2, are located at Respondent’s Wilmington Facility in an area

identified by Respondent as the “Purge Solvent Recovery Room.”

38. At the time of the EPA inspection of the Wilmington Facility on August 17, 2006,

Tanks 1 and 2 were and currently are used to store “waste clearcoat,” “waste spent solvent

mixture,” “waste primer” and “primer waste spent solvent mixture,” all of which are solid wastes

and hazardous wastes as those terms are defined at DRGHW § 260.10 and § 261.2 and 3.

39. Tanks 1 and 2 are “tanks” and, along with the piping, fittings, flanges, connectors,

valves and other pieces of ancillary equipment associated with Tanks 1 and 2, constitute a “tank

system” used for the “storage” of “hazardous waste” within the meaning of DRGHW § 260.10.

40. DRGHW § 265.193(a) provides that secondary containment that meets the

requirements of DRGHW § 265.193 must be provided for new and existing tank systems.

41. DRGHW § 193(d) provides that secondary containment for tanks must include one

or more of the following devices: 1) a liner; 2) a vault; 3) a doublewaIled tank; or 4) an

equivalent device as approved by the Secretary of the Delaware Department of Natural

Resources and Environmental Control.

42. DRGHW § 265.193(e)(1)(iv) provides that an external liner system used as

secondary containment for tanks must be designed and installed to completely surround the tanks

and to cover all surrounding earth likely to come into contact with the waste if released from a

tank (i.e. capable of preventing lateral as well as vertical migration of waste).

43. At the time of the EPA inspection of the Facility on August 17, 2006, Respondent

failed to qualify for the “less than 90 day” generator accumulation exemption of DRGHW §
262.34(a) by failing to satisfy the condition for the exemption requiring that external liner

secondary containment for tanks be designed and installed to completely surround Tanks 1 and 2

and cover all surrounding earth likely to come into contact with the waste if released from Tanks

1 and 2 (i.e., capable of preventing lateral as well as vertical migration of waste), as set forth in

DRGHW § 262.34(a)(1)(ii), which references DRGHW Part 265, Subpart J, which in turn

includes DRGHW § 265.193(e)(1). Respondent was required to have a permit or interim status
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for the storage of hazardous waste in Tanks 1 and 2. At all relevant times, Respondent did not

have a permit or interim status for Tanks 1 and 2. Respondent violated RCRA § 3005, 42 U.S.C.

§ 6925, and DRGHW § 270 by owning and operating a hazardous waste storage facility, i.e.,

Tanks 1 and 2, without a permit or interim status.

B. Wilmington Assembly Plant - Tanks 1 and 2—Improper Secondary

Containment

44. The allegations of Paragraphs 1 though 33, above, are incorporated by reference as

if fully set forth at length herein.

45. DRGHW § 264.193(a) provides, with exceptions not relevant to this matter, that

secondary containment that meets the requirements of DRGHW § 264.193(a) must be provided

for new and existing tanks storing hazardous waste.

46. DRGHW § 264.193(d) provides that secondary containment for tanks must include

one or more of the following devices: 1) a liner; 2) a vault; 3) a double-walled tank; or 4) an

equivalent device as approved by the Secretary of the Delaware Department of Natural

Resources and Environmental Control.

47. DRGHW § 264.193(e)(1)(iv) provides that external liner systems used as

secondary containment for tanks must be designed and installed to completely surround the tanks

and to cover all surrounding earth likely to come into contact with the waste if released from a

tank (i.e. capable of preventing lateral as well as vertical migration of waste).

48. Respondent violated DRGHW § 264.193(e)(1)(iv) by failing to design and install

secondary containment for Tanks 1 and 2 that completely surrounds Tanks 1 and 2 and to cover

all surrounding earth likely to come into contact with the waste if released from Tanks 1 and 2

(i.e. capable of preventing lateral was well as vertical migration of waste).
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IV. Region 4 AlIeations

Doraville — Owning and/or operating a hazardous waste storage facility without a permit
or interim status

49. The allegations of Paragraphs 1 through 33 above, are incorporated by reference as

if fully set forth at length herein.

50. Pursuant to Section 3006(b) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6926(b), on August 21, 1984,

the State of Georgia (the State) received final authorization from EPA to carry out certain

portions of the State hazardous waste program in lieu of the federal program set forth in RCRA.

The requirements of the authorized State program are found in the Georgia Hazardous Waste

Management Act (“GHWMA”), § 12-8-60 through § 12-8-83, and regulations set forth at

Chapter 391-3-11 of the Georgia Hazardous Waste Management Rules (“GHWMR”).

51. Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 262.34(a) and Chapter 391-3-11-.8 of GHWMR, a

generator may accumulate hazardous waste on site for ninety day or less without a permit or

interim status, provided that certain conditions are met, including inter alia, that the generator

complies with the requirements for owners and operators in 40 C.F.R. § 265, Subpart CC and

Chapter 391-3-11-.10 of GHWMR.

52. Respondent owns and, up until September 26, 2008, operated an automobile

assembly plant in Doraville, GA which contains a hazardous waste tank that was subject to the

requirements of 40 C.F.R. § 265, Subpart CC and Chapter 391-3-11-. 10 of GHWMR.

53. Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 265.1085(c)(4) and Chapter 391-3-11-.10 of GHWMR,

owners or operators are required to perform inspections of their tanks and closure devices.

Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 265.1085(c)(4)(ii) and Chapter 391-3-11-.10 of GHWMR, these

inspections must be performed at least every year. Respondent failed to conduct these

inspections for the years 2005, 2006, and 2007.
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54. By failing to comply with the requirements of 40 C.F.R. § 265.1085(c)(4)(ii) and

Chapter 391-3-11-.10 of GHWMR, Respondent failed to qualify for the “less than 90-day”

generator accumulation exemption of 40 C.F.R. § 262.34(a)(1)(ii) and Chapter 391-3-11-.08 of

GHWMR, which references 40 C.F.R. Part 265, Subpart J, and Chapter 391-3-11-.10 of

GHWMR which in turn includes 40 C.F.R. § 265.1085(c)(4)(ii), and therefore was operating a

storage facility without a permit in violation of Section 12-8-66 of the GHWHA [Section 3005

of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6925].

V. Region 5 Alle2ations

A. Lansing Facility — Daily Tank Inspection Log violation

55. The allegations of Paragraphs 1 though 33 above, are incorporated by reference as

if fully set forth at length herein.

56. On or about June 22 through 23, 2004, EPA conducted a Multimedia Compliance

Evaluation Inspection at the GM Lansing Car Assembly Plant, Lansing, Michigan.

57. At the time of the inspection the Lansing Facility did not have a hazardous waste

storage license. The Lansing Facility subsequently closed and was demolished.

58. In order to avoid the need for a hazardous waste storage license, large quantity

generators storing hazardous waste in a tank must inspect, where present, at least once each

operating day: (1) Overfill/spill control equipment to ensure that it is in good working order; (2)

The aboveground portions of the tank system, if any, to detect corrosion or releases of waste; (3)

Data gathered from monitoring equipment and leak-detection equipment, to ensure that the tank

system is being operated according to its design; and (4) The construction materials and the area

immediately surrounding the externally accessible portion of the tank system including

secondary containment structures (e.g., dikes) to detect erosion or signs of releases of hazardous
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waste (e.g. wet spots, dead vegetation). See, MAC R 299.9306(1)(a)(ii) and 40 C.F.R. Part 265,

Subparts J, AA, BB, and CC, except for the provisions of §265.197(c) and 265.200, and the

generator complies with the provisions of R 299.9615, except for R 299.9615(1). This is also a

requirement of owners and operators of hazardous waste storage facilities, under MAC R

299.9601(1), (2)(h), and (3)(b); 299.9615(1); and 40 C.F.R. § 264.195(b)(2).

59. During the records review portion of the inspection, the inspectors reviewed “Plant

6 Hazardous Waste Storage Tank/Waste Thinner System Inspection” records. The inspectors

observed that from 4/15/03 through 3/18/04, the GM Lansing inspector had noted for Tank B6-

102 a “Leak sensor off” light was on. No corrective action was noted on the daily inspection

logs.

60. Additionally, during the inspection, the inspectors observed an area on the east side

of the containment area that appeared wet. The 6/22/04, daily tank inspection logs had indicated

a “no” for signs of wet spots.

61. The GM Lansing Facility’s failure to comply with the provisions of the above

referenced license exemption in that they did not ensure that Overfill/spill control equipment was

in good working order is a violation of MAC R 299.9306(1)(a)(ii). [40 C.F.R. §265.201(c)]

B. Lansing Facility - Failure to maintain adequate aisle space in the less
than 90 day hazardous waste accumulation area in Building #22

62. The allegations of Paragraphs 1 though 33 above, are incorporated by reference as

if fully set forth at length herein.

63. In order to avoid the need for a hazardous waste storage license, a large quantity

generator must comply with the provisions of MAC R 299.9306(1)(d). MAC R 299.9306(1)

and 40 C.F.R. § 262.34(a)(4). Specifically, 40 C.F.R. § 262.34(a)(4) requires the generator

comply with the requirements for owners or operators in Subparts C and D in 40 CFR Part 265,

13



with § 265.16, and with 40 CFR § 268.7(a)(5). In 40 CFR Part 265, Subpart C, § 265.35

requires that the owner or operator must maintain aisle space to allow the unobstructed

movement of personnel, fire protection equipment, spill control equipment, and decontamination

equipment to any area of facility operation in an emergency, unless aisle space is not needed for

any of these purposes. This is also a requirement of owners and operators of hazardous waste

storage facilities, under MAC R 299.9606(1).

64. At the time of the inspection, the inspectors observed inadequate aisle space in the

less than 90 day hazardous waste accumulation area in Building #22. The inspectors observed

55-gallon containers of hazardous waste that were staged next to each other without any aisle

space. These conditions resulted in inadequate aisle space to allow the unobstructed movement

of personnel, fire protection equipment, spill control equipment and decontamination equipment

to the less than 90 day accumulation area.

65. GM Lansing therefore failed to comply with the above-referenced condition for a

license exemption, and violated the storage facility aisle space requirement in MAC R

299.9306(1)(d). [40 CFR Part 265, Subpart C, § 265.35]

C. Lansing Facility - Cracks and Gaps in the Surface Coating of the Building
#22 Hazardous Waste Accumulation Area

66. The allegations of Paragraphs 1 though 33 above, are incorporated by reference as

if fully set forth at length herein.

67. In order to avoid the need for a hazardous waste storage license, large quantity

generators storing containers of hazardous waste must have a hazardous waste storage area that

includes an impervious base free of cracks or gaps. MAC R 299.9306(1)(a)(i) and 40

C.F.R. § 264.175(b)(1). This is also a requirement of owners and operators of hazardous waste

storage facilities, under MAC R 299.9601(1), (2)(g), and (3)(b); 299.9614(1)(a); and 40 C.F.R.
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§ 264.175(b)(1).

68. During the inspection of GM Lansing’s hazardous waste accumulation area,

located in Building #22, the inspectors observed several areas that were cracked or had gaps in

the surface coating.

69. GM Lansing therefore failed to comply with the above-referenced condition for a

license exemption, in that it violated the storage facility containment system requirement, MAC

R 299.9306(1)(a)(i). [40 C.F.R. § 264.175(b)(1)1.

VI. Region 7 Allegations

A. GM Fairfax — Failure to maintain secondary containment for hazardous
waste accumulation tank

70. The allegations of Paragraphs 1 though 33 above, are incorporated by reference as

if fully set forth at length herein.

71. On or about August 23 through 26, 2005, EPA conducted a RCRA Compliance

Evaluation Inspection (CEI) at the GM Fairfax facility in Kansas City, Kansas.

72. Federal regulations (40 C.F.R. § 265.193(e)(1)(iii) and (iv)) and Kansas

Administrative Regulations (KAR), Article 31, Chapter 28-31-4(g)(1)(B) require a large quantity

generator to maintain secondary containment free of gaps and cracks and designed and installed

to completely surround the tank and to cover all surrounding earth likely to come into contact

with the waste if released from the tank (i.e., capable of preventing lateral as well as vertical

migration of the waste). To meet these performance standards, concrete secondary containment

structures must include an impermeable interior coating or lining that is compatible with the

stored waste and that will prevent migration of waste into the concrete.

73. At the time of the inspection of the Fairfax facility on or about August 23 through

26, 2005, GM was operating the facility as a large quantity generator of hazardous waste.
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74. At the time of the EPA inspection, the hazardous waste accumulation tank located

within the tank farm that was used to accumulate the spent purge solvent at the Fairfax Facility,

carrying the DOOl and D035 waste codes, had a capacity of 12,000 gallons.

75. During the inspection of the Fairfax facility, the inspector noted two 6-inch long

cracks in the concrete secondary containment structure for the purge solvent storage tank

referenced in paragraph 74. The inspector also noted two expansion joints where the joint

sealant was pulled away from the concrete, leaving gaps. The concrete structure did not have an

impermeable coating or lining in place at the time of the inspection.

76. Failure to maintain secondary containment free of gaps and cracks and failure to

have an impermeable interior coating or lining that is compatible with the stored waste and that

will prevent migration of waste into the concrete is a violation of KAR 28-31-4(g)(1)(B). [40

CFR 265.193(e)(1)(iii) and (iv)]

B. GM Fairfax — Failure to mark hazardous waste accumulation tank with
start date

77. The allegations of Paragraphs 1 though 33 and 71 above, are incorporated by

reference as if fully set forth at length herein.

78. KAR 28-31-4(g)(2) requires that, in order for a large quantity generator of

hazardous waste to accumulate hazardous waste for 90 days or less, without a permit or

obtaining interim status, the date upon which each period of accumulation begins is clearly

marked and visible for inspection on each tank.

79. During the inspection of the Fairfax facility, the inspector noted that the tank

referenced in Paragraph 74 above was not marked with the date that hazardous waste began

accumulating in the tank.
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80. The inspector reviewed the daily tank inspection logs and the hazardous waste

manifests but could not determine that all waste was removed from the tank every 90 days.

81. Respondent violated KAR 28-31-4(g)(2) by failing to mark the hazardous waste

accumulation tank with the start date of accumulation.

C. GM Wentzville - Owning and/or operating a hazardous waste storage
facility without a permit or interim status

82. The allegations of Paragraphs 1 though 33 above, are incorporated by reference as

if fully set forth at length herein.

83. On or about February 8 through 11, 2005, EPA conducted a RCRA CEI at the GM

Wentzville facility in Wentzville, Missouri.

84. Missouri Revised Statutes (RSMo) 260.390.1(1) and Section 3005 of RCRA

provide, in pertinent part, that a person may not own or operate a hazardous waste storage,

treatment, or disposal facility unless such person has first obtained a permit for the facility or has

qualified for interim status for the facility

85. At the time of the inspection of the Wentzville facility on or about February 8

through 11, 2005, GM was operating the facility as a large quantity generator of hazardous

waste.

86. During the inspection of the Wentzville facility, the inspector noted that Tank 12

contained 1964 gallons of hazardous purge solvent, carrying the DOOl waste code.

87. According to facility records reviewed during the inspection, hazardous waste was

placed into Tank 12011 March 29, 2004.

88. Respondent violated RSMo 260.390.1(1) and Section 3005 of RCRA by storing

hazardous waste in Tank 12 for more than 90 days without interim status or a permit.
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D. GM Wentzville - Failure to document all inspection items in the operating
record

89. The allegations of Paragraphs 1 though 33 and 83, above, are incorporated by

reference as if fully set forth at length herein.

90. Title 10 of the Missouri Code of State Regulations (CSR) 25-5.262(1) and 40

C.F.R. § 265.195(g) require that the facility document in the operating record of the facility the

inspection of those items in 40 CFR 265.195(a) and (b).

91. During the inspection, the inspector reviewed multiple tank inspection logs, each

log covering one calendar week. Multiple tank inspection logs lacked information required to be

documented by 40 C.F.R. § 265.195(g).

92. Failure to document all inspection items in the operating record of the facility is a

violation of 10 CSR 25-5.262(1). [40 C.F.R. § 265.195(g)]

VII. Terms of Agreement

93. Except as set forth in paragraphs 94 through 97, and 115 below, Respondent shall

comply with the provisions of 40 C.F.R. Part 265, Subparts J and CC, or the analogous

authorized state requirements, as applicable, for all tanks that are owned or operated by

Respondent and that store Purge Mixture, and the equipment ancillary to the tanks, immediately

prior to where the pipes exit and enter the tanks. Nothing in this CAFO shall be construed to

impose any regulation under RCRA Subtitle C on the Purge Mixture in the pipes other than on

those pipes immediately prior to the storage tanks.

94. Subject to Paragraphs 108 and 115 below, within three years of the effective date

of this order, GM shall comply with the secondary containment requirements of DRGHW

§ 265.193 for Tanks 1 and 2 at the Wilmington Assembly plant. GM shall ensure that an

external impermeable liner for the secondary containment for Tanks 1 and 2 completely
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surrounds the tanks and covers all surrounding earth likely to come into contact with the

hazardous waste if released from a tank (i.e., the liner shall be capable of preventing lateral as

well as vertical migration of waste) as required by DRGHW § 265.193(e)(1)(iv). Alternately, if

the tanks no longer store hazardous waste then such liner is not required.

95. Within three (3) years of the effective date of this order, Respondent shall submit

to EPA a certification signed by the Wilmington Facility Plant Manager (or as otherwise

permitted under 40 C.F.R. 270.11(a)(1)), stating that the Wilmington Assembly Plant is in

compliance with Paragraph 94 of this CAFO. This certification shall be sent to Jeanna Henry,

Environmental Scientist, U.S. EPA, Region 3, 1650 Arch Street (MC 3LC70), Philadelphia, PA

19103, with a copy to Duncan Campbell, RCRA Branch (LR-8J), U.S.EPA, Region 5, 77 West

Jackson Boulevard, Chicago, Illinois 60604-3590. The certification shall be as follows:

I certify that the GM Wilmington, Delaware Assembly Plant is in
compliance with Paragraph 94 of the ConsentAgreement and Final Order filed
In the Matter of General Motors Automotive, Docket No. RCRA-03-2009-0099. I
am aware that there are significantpenalties for submitting false information,
including the possibility offine and imprisonment for knowing violations.

96. Subject to Paragraphs 108 and 115 below, within three (3) years of the effective

date of this order, Respondent will comply with the secondary containment requirements of

Kansas Administrative Regulations (KAR), Article 31, Chapter 28-31-4(g)(1)(B) and Title 40 of

the Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) 265.193(e)(1)(iii) and (iv) at the Fairfax plant in Kansas

City, Kansas. Compliance will consist of the application of an impermeable liner that is

compatible with the stored waste and that will prevent migration of waste into the concrete, at

the hazardous waste accumulation tank for the spent purge solvent. Alternately, if the tanks no

longer store hazardous waste then such liner is not required.
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97. On or before March 1, 2012, Respondent shall submit to EPA a certification signed

by the Fairfax Facility Plant Manager (or as otherwise permitted under 40 C.F.R. § 270.11(a)(1),

stating that the Fairfax Facility in Kansas City, Kansas is in compliance with Paragraph 96 of

this CAFO. This certification shall be sent to Elizabeth Koesterer, (AWMD/RESP) U.S.EPA,

Region 7, 901 North 5h Street, Kansas City, Kansas 66101, with a copy to Duncan Campbell,

RCRA Branch (LR-8J), U.S.EPA,, Region 5, 77 West Jackson Boulevard, Chicago, Illinois

60604-3590. The certification shall be as follows:

I certify that the Fairfax Facility in Kansas City, Kansas is in compliance with
Paragraph 96 of the Consent Agreement and Final Order (Docket No. RCRA-05-2004-0001). I
am aware that there are significant penalties for submitting false information, including the
possibility offine and imprisonment for knowing violations.

98. Respondent shall pay a civil penalty in the amount of forty-eight thousand two

hundred and sixty dollars ($48,260) to resolve Complainants’ claims for civil penalties arising

from the violations of RCRA alleged in the Complaint or referenced above in this CAFO. Such

civil penalty is based upon consideration of the factors set forth in Section 3008(a)(3) of RCRA,

42 U.S.C. § 6928(a)(3), the RCRA Civil Penalty Policy, and 40 C.F.R. Part 19. Such civil

penalty shall become due and payable within thirty (30) days of Respondent’s receipt of a true

and correct copy of the CAFO. Respondent must pay the civil penalty identified in this

paragraph by check, or by electronic wire transfer, and it must be payable to “Treasurer, the

United States of America.” If payment is made by check, the check must be paid to:

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Fines and Penalties
Cincinnati Finance Center
P.O. Box 979077
St. Louis, MO 63197-9000

The name of the Respondent, the billing document number and the Docket Number of this

proceeding must be clearly marked on the face of the check. EPA will furnish Respondent with
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the billing document number upon entry of this CAFO. Failure to pay the full amount of the

civil penalty assessed under this Consent Agreement may subject Respondent to a civil action to

collect any unpaid portion of the civil penalty. Furthermore, in order to avoid the assessment of

interest, administrative costs and a late payment penalty in connection with such civil penalties,

as described in paragraph 103 of this Consent Agreement, Respondent must pay the civil penalty

no later than thirty (30) calendar days after the date on which a copy of this CAFO is received by

the Respondent.

99. Respondent shall send copies of the transmittal of the payment to:

(a) Regional Hearing Clerk
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
77 West Jackson Boulevard, (E-13J)
Chicago, Illinois 60604

(b) Jeanna Henry
Environmental Scientist
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
1650 Arch Street (MC 3LC70)
Philadelphia, PA 19103

(c) Larry Lamberth
RCRA and OPA Enforcement and Compliance Branch
RCRA Division
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Sam Nunn Atlanta Federal Center
61 Forsyth Street
Atlanta, GA 30303

(d) Duncan Campbell
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
RCRA Branch
Land and Chemicals Division
77 West Jackson Boulevard, (LR-8J)
Chicago, Illinois 60604

(e) Elizabeth Koesterer (AWMD/RESP)
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
901 North 5th Street
Kansas City, KS 66101
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100. Respondent shall be liable for stipulated penalties to the EPA, as specified below,

for failure to comply with the requirements of Section VII of this CAFO, unless excused by

EPA, in its sole discretion.

101. For failure to comply with the requirements of this CAFO, Respondent shall pay

stipulated penalties in the following amounts for each day during which the violations continue:

Period of Failure to Comply Penalty Per Violation Per day

1st through 7th day $100.00

8th through 21st day $250.00

22” through 30t day $500.00

Greater than 30 days $1,000.00

These stipulated penalties apply separately and fully to each of Respondent’s Facilities,

and may become due for violations at more than one Facility on a day of violation. Stipulated

penalties accrue regardless of notice of the violation from EPA. For purposes of calculating

interest, administrative costs and late payment penalty, the stipulated penalties become “due”

upon receipt by the Respondent of a written notice from EPA that payment of such stipulated

penalties is due.

102. Respondent’s failure to timely comply with any material and substantial provision

of this CAFO may subject Respondent to a civil action pursuant to Section 3008(c) of RCRA, 42

U.S.C. § 6928(c), to collect penalties for any noncompliance with the Order (as well as

injunctive relief). The amount of any stipulated penalties Respondent has paid for any such

failure to comply may be subtracted from any penalty amount sought by EPA for such failure to

comply pursuant to Section 3008(c) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6928(c), at EPA’s discretion, which

discretion will not be unreasonably withheld.
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103. EPA is required to assess interest and penalties on debts owed to the United States

and a charge to cover the costs of processing and handling the delinquent claim, and Respondent

agrees to pay these amounts under this CAFO. Interest, at the statutory judgment rate provided

for in 31 U.S.C. § 3717, will therefore begin to accrue on the civil penalty agreed to herein

and/or on any stipulated penalty imposed pursuant to this CAFO on the date a copy of this

CAFO is received by Respondent (in the case of civil penalties) or a copy of the notice for

stipulated penalties is received by Respondent. However, EPA will not seek to recover interest

on any portion of the civil penalty or any stipulated penalties that is paid within thirty (30)

calendar days after the date on which such interest begins to accrue. Pursuant to 31 U.S.C.

§ 3717, Respondent must pay the following amounts on any amount overdue:

(a) Interest. Any unpaid portion of a civil penalty or stipulated penalty must bear interest at
the rate established by the Secretary of the Treasury pursuant to 31 U.S.C. § 3717(a)(1). Interest
will be assessed at the rate of the United States Treasury tax and loan rate in accordance with 40
C.F.R. § 13.11(a).

(b) Monthly Administrative Handling Charge. Respondent must pay an administrative
handling charge of $15.00 on any overdue debt, with an additional charge of $15.00 for each
subsequent thirty (30) calendar day period over which an overdue balance remains.

(c) Late-Payment Penalty. On any portion of a civil penalty or stipulated penalty more than
ninety (90) calendar days delinquent, Respondent must pay a late-payment penalty of six percent
per annum, which will accrue from the date the penalty payment became delinquent. This late-
payment is in addition to charges which accrue or may accrue under subparagraphs (a) and (b).

104. Penalties paid pursuant to this CAFO are not deductible for federal purposes under

28 U.S.C. § 162(f).

105. Nothing in this agreement prohibits, alters, or in any way limits EPA’s ability to

seek any other remedies or sanctions available by virtue of Respondent’s violation of this CAFO.

106. This CAFO represents a final settlement of Respondent’s civil liability under

Section 3008(a) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6928(a), for: (a) the specific claims for the violations
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alleged in the administrative complaint issued by Region 5 of the EPA; and (b) the allegations

otherwise asserted in this CAFO. Nothing in this CAFO is intended to, nor shall be construed to,

operate in any way to resolve any criminal liability of Respondent arising from the violations

addressed in this CAFO. Compliance with this CAFO shall not be a defense to any actions

subsequently commenced pursuant to Federal or State laws and regulations, and it is the

responsibility of Respondent to comply with such laws and regulations.

107. Nothing in this CAFO relieves Respondent from its obligation to comply with all

applicable federal, state and local statutes and regulations, including the RCRA Subtitle C

requirements at 40 C.F.R. Parts 260 through 279, and authorized State programs, at the Facilities.

108. If, in good faith, Respondent obtains a written variance, exemption, or waiver from

an authorized state from any of the requirements set forth in this CAFO, and if Respondent

complies with the terms of any such variance, exemption or waiver, Respondent shall not be

liable for stipulated penalties which might accrue pursuant to paragraph 101 until EPA gives

written notice to Respondent that Respondent is out of compliance with this CAFO. Stipulated

penalties in such an instance will accrue beginning thirty days after EPA gives notice to

Respondent that Respondent is out of compliance with this CAFO.

109. Respondent waives any rights it may possess in law or equity to challenge the

authority of EPA to bring a civil action in the appropriate United States District Court to compel

compliance with the CAFO or to seek an additional penalty for such noncompliance.

110. Each party agrees to bear its own costs and attorney’s fees in the action(s) resolved

by this CAFO.

111. This CAFO shall be binding upon all Parties to this matter, and their successors

and assigns. The undersigned representative of each Party to this CAFO certifies that he or she
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is duly authorized by the Party whom he or she represents to enter into the terms and bind that

Party to them.

112. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Consent Order, EPA expressly

reserves any all rights to bring an enforcement action pursuant to Section 7003 of RCRA, 42

U.S.C. § 6973, or other statutory authority should EPA find that the handling, storage, treatment,

transportation, or disposal of solid waste or hazardous waste at any of the Facilities may present

an imminent and substantial endangerment to health or the environment. EPA also expressly

reserves the right: (a) for any matters other than violations alleged in the Complaint, or resolved

through this CAFO, to take any action authorized under Section 3008 of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. §

6928; (b) to enforce compliance with the applicable provisions of any applicable authorized state

hazardous waste program; (c) to take any action under 40 C.F.R. Parts 124 and 270 and

applicable analogous requirements of any authorized state hazardous waste program; EPA also

expressly reserves the right to enforce compliance with this CAFO.

113. The contacts for the parties under this CA/FO are as follows:

EPA Region 3: Jeanna Henry
Environmental Scientist
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
1650 Arch Street (MC 3LC70)
Philadelphia, PA 19103

EPA Region 4: Larry Lamberth
RCRA and OPA Enforcement and Compliance Branch
RCRA Division
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Sam Nunn Atlanta Federal Center
61 Forsyth Street
Atlanta, GA 30303
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EPA Region 5: Duncan Campbell
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
RCRA Branch
Land and Chemicals Division
77 West Jackson Boulevard, (LR-8J)
Chicago, illinois 60604

EPA Region 7: Elizabeth Koesterer (AWMD!RESP)
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
901 North 5th Street
Kansas City, KS 66101

GM: James Walle
General Motors Corporation
Mail Code 482-C24-D24
300 Renaissance Center
P.O. Box 300
Detroit, Michigan 48265-3000

114. Respondent may request an extension of performance dates or other modification

(not to include modification to the penalty provision in paragraph 98) to the terms of this CAFO

for good cause. A request for the extension or modification must be addressed to the contact for

the pertinent EPA Region, with a copy to the contact for OECA, be in writing and include, but

not limited to: (a) if requesting an extension of any deadline specified in this CAFO, the

anticipated date by which Respondent will complete the task; (b) the reason for the requested

modification; and (c) any documentation to support the “good cause” to grant such modification

request. Any decision by the pertinent EPA Region to allow an extension will be in its sole

discretion and will not be unreasonably withheld. Any decision by EPA to allow an extension

shall be in writing and signed by the Complainant for the pertinent Region and the Respondent.

115. Respondent shall be under no obligation imposed pursuant to this CAFO to manage

Purge Mixture as a solid waste or a hazardous waste at a Facility referred to in this CAFO on and

after the date that any regulation (e.g. the Revised Definition of Solid Waste: 40 C.F.R. 26 1.2(c)
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(3) and 261.4(a)(23); 73 F.R. 64668 (Oct. 30, 2008)) promulgated by EPA which excludes or

exempts Purge Mixture as a solid waste or a hazardous waste becomes effective and enforceable

by EPA in the state in which any such Facility is located.

116. Respondent may request termination of the CAFO thirty (30) calendar days after it

has certified that it is in compliance with 40 C.RR. Part 265, Subparts J and CC, and the

requirements of this CAFO. Respondent shall submit the written request for termination to

Chief, Enforcement and Compliance Assurance Branch, Land and Chemicals Division, Region

5. Upon receipt of the written request and after reviewing all information, EPA will notify

Respondent in writing regarding its decision with respect to the termination of the CAFO. EPA

may request further information and/or documentation before deciding that compliance has been

demonstrated. This CAFO shall terminate upon EPA’s determination that Respondent has

complied with the requirements of the CAFO.

117. Upon the effective date of this CAFO, EPA agrees to make appropriate corrections

to the ECHO data base for the RCRA compliance status of the GM Facilities identified in this

CAFO.

118. This Consent Agreement is effective upon the filing of the Final Order. 40 C.F.R.

§ 22.31(b).

119. Each undersigned representative of a party to this Consent Agreement and Final

Order certifies that he or she is fully authorized to enter into the terms and conditions of this

Consent Agreement and Final Order and to legally bind such party to this document.
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IN THE MATTER OF: General Motors Automotive — North America
Docket Nos RCRA-03-2009-0099

RCRA-04-2009-4007(b)
RCRA-05-2004-0001
RCRA-07-2009-000l

Respondent: GM

1,1
Agreed to this / 1 day of , 2009.

By:
Kenneth R. Knight
Executive Director Global World Wide Facilities Group, General Motors Corp.
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IN THE MATTER OF: General Motors Automotive — North America
Docket Nos RCRA-03-2009-0099

RCRA-04-2009-4007(b)
RCRA-05-2004-0001
RCRA-07-2009-0001

For Complainant, United States Environmental Protection Agency, Region III:

Date:
‘:

By:

1’
Joyce. A. Howell
Senior Assistant Region Counsel

After reviewing the foregoing Consent Agreement and other pertinent information, the

Director, Land and Chemicals Division, EPA Region III, recommends that the Regional

Administrator of the Regional Judicial Officer issue the Final Order attached hereto.

Date:_________ By:
Abraham Ferdas
Director
Land and Chemicals Division
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IN THE MATTER OF: General Motors Automotive — North America
Docket Nos RCRA-03-2009-0099

RCRA-04-2009-4007(b)
RCRA-05-2004-0001
RCRA-07-2009-000 1

For Complainant, United States Environmental Protection Agency, Region 4:

Date: JO? ____

Caroline Y.F. Robinson, Chief
RCRA & OPA Enforcement and
Compliance Branch
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IN THE MATTER OF: General Motors Automotive — North America
Docket Nos RCRA-03-2009-0099

RCRA-04-2009-4007(b)
RCRA-05-2004-0001
RCRA-07-2009-0001

For Complainant, United States Environmental Protection Agency, Region V:

Agreed to this

_________

day of
- , 2009.

By:

I

Director, and Chemicals Division, Region 5
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IN THE MATTER OF: General Motors Automotive — North America
Docket Nos RCRA-03-2009-0099

RCRA-04-2009-4007(b)
RCRA-05-2004-000 1
RCRA-07-2009-0001

For the Complainant:
The United States Environmental Protection Agency, Region 7

DatØ17&/ 2i

Date:

Toensing’
Chief, RCRA Enforcement and State Programs Branch
Air and Waste Management Division
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Region 7

Chris R. Dudding
Assistant Regional Counsel
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Region 7
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IN THE MATTER OF: General Motors Automotive — North America
Docket Nos RCRA-03-2009-0099

RCRA-04-2009-4007(b)
RCRA-05-2004-0001
RCRA-07-2009-0001

FINAL ORDER

The foregoing Consent Agreement is hereby approved, ratified and incorporated by

reference into this Final Order in accordance with the Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing

the Administrative Assessment of Civil Penalties and the RevocationjTermiuation or Suspension

of Permits, (“Consolidated Rules of Practice”), 40 C.F.R. Part 22 (with specific reference to 40

C.F.R. Sections 22.13(b) and 22.18(b)(2) and (3)). The Respondent is hereby ORDERED to

comply with all of the terms of the foregoing Consent Agreement effective immediately upon

filing of this Consent Agreement and Final Order with the Regional Hearing Clerk. This Order

disposes of this matter pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 22.18 and 22.31 [64 Fed. Reg. 40138 (July 23,

1999)].

Date:

____ __________________.

S A L3.Y, ,, ft’l&( atjJ
For EPA Region 3
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IN THE MATTER OF: General Motors Automotive — North America
Docket Nos RCRA-03-2009-0099

RCRA-04-2009-4007(b)
RCRA-05-2004-0001
RCRA-07-2009-0001

FINAL ORDER

The foregoing Consent Agreement is hereby approved, ratified and incorporated by

reference into this Final Order in accordance with the Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing

the Administrative Assessment of Civil Penalties and the RevocationlTermination or Suspension

of Permits, (“Consolidated Rules of Practice”), 40 C.F.R. Part 22 (with specific reference to 40

C.F.R. Sections 22.13(b) and 22.18(b)(2) and (3)). The Respondent is hereby ORDERED to

comply with all of the terms of the foregoing Consent Agreement effective immediately upon

filing of this Consent Agreement and Final Order with the Regional Hearing Clerk. This Order

disposes of this matter pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 22.18 and 22.31 [64 Fed. Reg. 40138 (July 23,

1999)].

Date:

____ _________________

For EPA Region 4

•1
:: ‘rJJ

) ,‘

-
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IN THE MATTER OF: General Motors Automotive — North America
Docket Nos RCRA-03-2009-0099

RCRA-04-2009-4007(b)
RCRA-05-2004-0001
RCRA-07-2009-0001

FINAL ORDER

The foregoing Consent Agreement is hereby approved, ratified and incorporated by

reference into this Final Order in accordance with the Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing

the Administrative Assessment of Civil Penalties and the Revocation/Termination or Suspension

of Permits, (“Consolidated Rules of Practice”), 40 C.F.R. Part 22 (with specific reference to 40

C.F.R. Sections 22.13(b) and 22.18(b)(2) and (3)). The Respondent is hereby ORDERED to

comply with all of the terms of the foregoing Consent Agreement effective immediately upon

filing of this Consent Agreement and Final Order with the Regional Hearing Clerk. This Order

disposes of this matter pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 22.18 and 22.31 [64 Fed. Reg. 40138 (July 23,

1999)j.

Date:

_____
__________

For EPA Region 5
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IN THE MATTER OF: General Motors Automotive — North America
Docket Nos RCRA-03-2009-0099

RCRA-04-2009-4007(b)
RCRA-05-2004-000l
RCRA-07-2009-000l

1
FINAL ORDER

The foregoing Consent Agreement is hereby approved, ratified and incorporated by

reference into this Final Order in accordance with the Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing

the Administrative Assessment of Civil Penalties and the Revocation/Termination or Suspension

of Permits, (“Consolidated Rules of Practice”), 40 C.F.R. Part 22 (with specific reference to 40

C.F.R. Sections 22.13(b) and 22.18(b)(2) and (3)). The Respondent is hereby ORDERED to

comply w’th all of the terms of the foregoing Consent Agreement effective immediately upon

filing of this Consent Agreement and Final Order with the Regional Hearing Clerk. This Order

disposes of this matter pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 22.18 and 22.31 [64 Fed. Reg. 40138 (July 23,

1999)].

Date:

_____

For EPA Region 7

ô74Q sJ
j

jAt ‘itVi

(D1:.)A Ci]$

•ik: .

36



IN THE MATTER OF: General Motors Automotive — North America
Docket Nos RCRA-03-2009-0099

RCRA-04-2009-4007(b)
RCRA-O5-2004-0001
RCRA-07-2009-0001

MAY 26 2009

REGIONAL HtARING CLERK

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that today I filed the original of this Consent Agreement and Final

Order and this Certificate of Service in the office of the Regional Hearing Clerk, United States

Environmental Protection Agency, Region 5, 77 W. Jackson Boulevard, Chicago, IL 60604-

3590, and that I then caused true and accurate copies of the filed document to be promptly

mailed to the following by First Class Mail:

Honorable Barbara A. Gunning
Administrative Law Judge (1900L)
Office of the Administrative Law Judges
Ariel Rios Building
1200 Pennsylvania Ave., N.W.
Washington, D.C. 20460

James Walle
General Motors Corporation
Mail Code 482-C24-D4
300 Renaissance Center
P.O. Box 300
Detroit, Michigan 48265-3000

Certified Mail #

Dated

_____________,

200k

___________________

Pä1iicia Jeffries-H$we!ll
Legal Technician (C-14J)
United States Environmental Protection Agency
77 W. Jackson Boulevard
Chicago, Illinois 60604-3590
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Clevenger, Kari

From: Taylor Lyon <taylor.lyon@gm.com>
Sent: Thursday, June 20, 2024 11:18 AM
To: Clevenger, Kari
Cc: Matthew Arbuckle; Glenn Perham
Subject: RE: ESP Incentive Advanced Notice of Inspection 
Attachments: Initial followup information and correction actions.pdf; Glenn Perham RCRA Haz 

Cert.pdf; purge thinner reclaim daily inspection form for June to provide to IDEM; Tank 
19 Integrity Test Excerpt-Certification - June 1997.pdf; Volume of reclaim purge in tank 
19 on 6/18/24; RCRA-05-2004-0001 CA CAFO.pdf; spent purge solvent / purge pot 
diagram to provide to IDEM

**** This is an EXTERNAL email. Exercise caution. DO NOT open attachments or click links from 
unknown senders or unexpected email. ****  

Kari, 
Please see aƩachments in regards to requested informaƟon and correcƟve acƟons with photos. 
 
Taylor 
 

From: Clevenger, Kari <KCleveng@idem.IN.gov>  
Sent: Thursday, June 20, 2024 9:52 AM 
To: Taylor Lyon <taylor.lyon@gm.com> 
Cc: Matthew Arbuckle <matt.arbuckle@gm.com> 
Subject: [EXTERNAL] RE: ESP Incentive Advanced Notice of Inspection  
 

ATTENTION: This email originated from outside of GM. 

 
   
Taylor, 
 
Sounds good. I will talk to you then. 
 
 

 

Kari Clevenger 
Senior Environmental Manager 
Hazardous Waste Compliance 

                                                         
(317) 760-3702 • kcleveng@idem.in.gov  
  

  |    |    |    |    | www.idem.IN.gov 
 

 

 
 

From: Taylor Lyon <taylor.lyon@gm.com>  
Sent: Thursday, June 20, 2024 9:27 AM 
To: Clevenger, Kari <KCleveng@idem.IN.gov> 
Cc: Matthew Arbuckle <matt.arbuckle@gm.com> 
Subject: RE: ESP Incentive Advanced Notice of Inspection  
 



2

**** This is an EXTERNAL email. Exercise caution. DO NOT open attachments or click links from 
unknown senders or unexpected email. ****  

Will 11:30am work?  If so, we will call you then with the number listed below. 
 

From: Clevenger, Kari <KCleveng@idem.IN.gov>  
Sent: Thursday, June 20, 2024 8:53 AM 
To: Taylor Lyon <taylor.lyon@gm.com> 
Cc: Matthew Arbuckle <matt.arbuckle@gm.com> 
Subject: [EXTERNAL] RE: ESP Incentive Advanced Notice of Inspection  
 

ATTENTION: This email originated from outside of GM. 

 
   
Taylor, 
 
I am not available after 12:30 today. I have a meeting from 10:30-11:00am today as well. I have time tomorrow if 
that works better in terms of time. I have the following available 8-10 am and 1-4pm. Let me know what works. 
 
 

 

Kari Clevenger 
Senior Environmental Manager 
Hazardous Waste Compliance 

                                                         
(317) 760-3702 • kcleveng@idem.in.gov  
  

  |    |    |    |    | www.idem.IN.gov 
 

 

 
 

From: Taylor Lyon <taylor.lyon@gm.com>  
Sent: Thursday, June 20, 2024 8:47 AM 
To: Clevenger, Kari <KCleveng@idem.IN.gov> 
Cc: Matthew Arbuckle <matt.arbuckle@gm.com> 
Subject: RE: ESP Incentive Advanced Notice of Inspection  
Importance: High 
 
**** This is an EXTERNAL email. Exercise caution. DO NOT open attachments or click links from 
unknown senders or unexpected email. ****  

Good morning! 
We have corrected all concerns raised and would like to speak to you prior to your submission of the report if 
possible.  Are you available today around noon?  I will send all requested material shortly.  Thank you! 
 
Taylor  
 

From: Clevenger, Kari <KCleveng@idem.IN.gov>  
Sent: Monday, June 17, 2024 8:03 AM 
To: Larry Wade Jr <larry.wade@gm.com>; Taylor Lyon <taylor.lyon@gm.com> 
Subject: [EXTERNAL] ESP Incentive Advanced Notice of Inspection  
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ATTENTION: This email originated from outside of GM. 

 
   
Taylor, 
 
I am providing advanced notice of intent of a hazardous waste inspection at Fort Wayne Assembly General Motors 
LLC per ESP incentive. Please confirm receipt of this email. 
 
 

 

Kari Clevenger 
Senior Environmental Manager 
Hazardous Waste Compliance 

                                                         
(317) 760-3702 • kcleveng@idem.in.gov  
  

  |    |    |    |    | www.idem.IN.gov 
 

 

 
 
 
 
Nothing in this message is intended to constitute an electronic signature unless a specific statement to 
the contrary is included in this message. 
 
Confidentiality Note: This message is intended only for the person or entity to which it is addressed. It 
may contain confidential and/or privileged material. Any review, transmission, dissemination or other 
use, or taking of any action in reliance upon this message by persons or entities other than the intended 
recipient is prohibited and may be unlawful. If you received this message in error, please contact the 
sender and delete it from your computer.  
 
 
Nothing in this message is intended to constitute an electronic signature unless a specific statement to 
the contrary is included in this message. 
 
Confidentiality Note: This message is intended only for the person or entity to which it is addressed. It 
may contain confidential and/or privileged material. Any review, transmission, dissemination or other 
use, or taking of any action in reliance upon this message by persons or entities other than the intended 
recipient is prohibited and may be unlawful. If you received this message in error, please contact the 
sender and delete it from your computer.  
 
 
Nothing in this message is intended to constitute an electronic signature unless a specific statement to 
the contrary is included in this message. 
 
Confidentiality Note: This message is intended only for the person or entity to which it is addressed. It 
may contain confidential and/or privileged material. Any review, transmission, dissemination or other 
use, or taking of any action in reliance upon this message by persons or entities other than the intended 
recipient is prohibited and may be unlawful. If you received this message in error, please contact the 
sender and delete it from your computer.  



The image part with relationship ID rId20 was not found in the file.

•

•


•

•
 Cracks in the lining have been repaired; see pictures. No cracks present in the concrete beneath the lining.
 FWA submitted notification earlier this month to manage purge as Hazardous Secondary Material, which does not require 

a lining for secondary containment.



The image part with relationship ID rId20 was not found in the file.



The image part with relationship ID rId20 was not found in the file.



The image part with relationship ID rId20 was not found in the file.



The image part with relationship ID rId20 was not found in the file.



The image part with relationship ID rId20 was not found in the file.



The image part with relationship ID rId20 was not found in the file.



The image part with relationship ID rId20 was not found in the file.



The image part with relationship ID rId20 was not found in the file.



The image part with relationship ID rId20 was not found in the file.



The image part with relationship ID rId20 was not found in the file.



The image part with relationship ID rId20 was not found in the file.



The image part with relationship ID rId20 was not found in the file.



The image part with relationship ID rId20 was not found in the file.



The image part with relationship ID rId20 was not found in the file.



The image part with relationship ID rId20 was not found in the file.



The image part with relationship ID rId20 was not found in the file.



The image part with relationship ID rId20 was not found in the file.
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Clevenger, Kari

From: Matthew Arbuckle <matt.arbuckle@gm.com>
Sent: Tuesday, June 18, 2024 7:47 PM
To: Taylor Lyon
Subject: purge thinner reclaim daily inspection form for June to provide to IDEM

Here’s the purge record we owe IDEM  
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Sent from my iPhone 



1

Clevenger, Kari

From: Matthew Arbuckle <matt.arbuckle@gm.com>
Sent: Thursday, June 20, 2024 9:43 AM
To: Taylor Lyon
Subject: Volume of reclaim purge in tank 19 on 6/18/24
Attachments: Tank volume conversion chart in to gal.docx

At 32.6 inches depth for the reclaim purge solvent tank (see picture below), the gallons of reclaim purge present is about 
3900 gallons. 
 



2



3

 
Sent from my iPhone 



1

Clevenger, Kari

From: Matthew Arbuckle <matt.arbuckle@gm.com>
Sent: Tuesday, June 18, 2024 5:58 PM
To: Taylor Lyon
Subject: spent purge solvent / purge pot diagram to provide to IDEM

 
 















































 Cylinder Diameter= 126 Inches  

 Cylinder Length=   352 Inches  

 

       When Tank        Then Tank 

       Depth Equals      Volume Equals 

 

       0.00 Inches        0.00 U S gallons  38.00 Inches        4,829.30 U S gallons 

       1.00 Inches        22.752 U S gallons  39.00 Inches        5,006.20 U S gallons 

       2.00 Inches        64.198 U S gallons  40.00 Inches        5,184.30 U S gallons 

       3.00 Inches        117.65 U S gallons  41.00 Inches        5,363.70 U S gallons 

       4.00 Inches        180.70 U S gallons  42.00 Inches        5,544.10 U S gallons 

       5.00 Inches        251.92 U S gallons  43.00 Inches        5,725.70 U S gallons 

       6.00 Inches        330.35 U S gallons  44.00 Inches        5,908.30 U S gallons 

       7.00 Inches        415.27 U S gallons  45.00 Inches        6,091.80 U S gallons 

       8.00 Inches        506.10 U S gallons  46.00 Inches        6,276.20 U S gallons 

       9.00 Inches        602.40 U S gallons  47.00 Inches        6,461.50 U S gallons 

       10.00 Inches       703.78 U S gallons  48.00 Inches        6,647.60 U S gallons 

       11.00 Inches       809.90 U S gallons  49.00 Inches        6,834.50 U S gallons 

       12.00 Inches       920.47 U S gallons  50.00 Inches        7,022.00 U S gallons 

       13.00 Inches       1,035.30 U S gallons  51.00 Inches        7,210.20 U S gallons 

       14.00 Inches       1,154.00 U S gallons  52.00 Inches        7,399.00 U S gallons 

       15.00 Inches       1,276.60 U S gallons  53.00 Inches        7,588.30 U S gallons 

       16.00 Inches       1,402.70 U S gallons  54.00 Inches        7,778.10 U S gallons 

       17.00 Inches       1,532.20 U S gallons  55.00 Inches        7,968.30 U S gallons 

       18.00 Inches       1,665.00 U S gallons  56.00 Inches        8,158.90 U S gallons 

       19.00 Inches       1,800.90 U S gallons  57.00 Inches        8,349.90 U S gallons 

       20.00 Inches       1,939.80 U S gallons  58.00 Inches        8,541.20 U S gallons 

       21.00 Inches       2,081.50 U S gallons  59.00 Inches        8,732.70 U S gallons 

       22.00 Inches       2,226.00 U S gallons  60.00 Inches        8,924.40 U S gallons 

       23.00 Inches       2,373.00 U S gallons  61.00 Inches        9,116.20 U S gallons 

       24.00 Inches       2,522.60 U S gallons  62.00 Inches        9,308.20 U S gallons 

       25.00 Inches       2,674.60 U S gallons  63.00 Inches        9,500.20 U S gallons 

       26.00 Inches       2,828.80 U S gallons  64.00 Inches        9,692.20 U S gallons 

       27.00 Inches       2,985.30 U S gallons  65.00 Inches        9,884.10 U S gallons 

       28.00 Inches       3,143.90 U S gallons  66.00 Inches        10,076.00 U S gallons 

       29.00 Inches       3,304.60 U S gallons  67.00 Inches        10,268.00 U S gallons 

       30.00 Inches       3,467.20 U S gallons  68.00 Inches        10,459.00 U S gallons 

       31.00 Inches       3,631.70 U S gallons  69.00 Inches        10,650.00 U S gallons  

       32.00 Inches       3,797.90 U S gallons  70.00 Inches        10,841.00 U S gallons 

       33.00 Inches       3,965.90 U S gallons  71.00 Inches        11,032.00 U S gallons 

       34.00 Inches       4,135.60 U S gallons  72.00 Inches        11,222.00 U S gallons 

       35.00 Inches       4,306.80 U S gallons  73.00 Inches        11,412.00 U S gallons 

       36.00 Inches       4,479.60 U S gallons  74.00 Inches        11,601.00 U S gallons 

       37.00 Inches       4,653.70 U S gallons  75.00 Inches        11,790.00 U S gallons 



                   

         

            76.00 Inches        11,978.00 U S gallons  118.00 Inches        18,494.00 U S gallons 

       77.00 Inches        12,166.00 U S gallons 119.00 Inches        18,585.00 U S gallons 

       78.00 Inches        12,353.00 U S gallons 120.00 Inches        18,670.00 U S gallons 

       79.00 Inches        12,539.00 U S gallons 121.00 Inches        18,748.00 U S gallons 

       80.00 Inches        12,724.00 U S gallons 122.00 Inches        18,820.00 U S gallons 

       81.00 Inches        12,909.00 U S gallons 123.00 Inches        18,883.00 U S gallons 

       82.00 Inches        13,092.00 U S gallons 124.00 Inches        18,936.00 U S gallons 

       83.00 Inches        13,275.00 U S gallons 125.00 Inches        18,978.00 U S gallons 

       84.00 Inches        13,456.00 U S gallons 126.00 Inches        19,000.00 U S gallons 

       85.00 Inches        13,637.00 U S gallons 

       86.00 Inches        13,816.00 U S gallons 

       87.00 Inches        13,994.00 U S gallons 

       88.00 Inches        14,171.00 U S gallons 

       89.00 Inches        14,347.00 U S gallons 

       90.00 Inches        14,521.00 U S gallons 

       91.00 Inches        14,694.00 U S gallons 

       92.00 Inches        14,865.00 U S gallons 

       93.00 Inches        15,034.00 U S gallons 

       94.00 Inches        15,202.00 U S gallons 

       95.00 Inches        15,369.00 U S gallons 

       96.00 Inches        15,533.00 U S gallons 

       97.00 Inches        15,696.00 U S gallons 

       98.00 Inches        15,856.00 U S gallons 

       99.00 Inches        16,015.00 U S gallons 

       100.00 Inches       16,172.00 U S gallons 

       101.00 Inches       16,326.00 U S gallons 

       102.00 Inches       16,478.00 U S gallons 

       103.00 Inches       16,627.00 U S gallons 

       104.00 Inches       16,774.00 U S gallons 

       105.00 Inches       16,919.00 U S gallons 

       106.00 Inches       17,061.00 U S gallons 

       107.00 Inches       17,199.00 U S gallons 

       108.00 Inches       17,335.00 U S gallons 

       109.00 Inches       17,468.00 U S gallons 

       110.00 Inches       17,598.00 U S gallons 

       111.00 Inches       17,724.00 U S gallons 

       112.00 Inches       17,846.00 U S gallons 

       113.00 Inches       17,965.00 U S gallons 

       114.00 Inches       18,080.00 U S gallons 

       115.00 Inches       18,190.00 U S gallons 

       116.00 Inches       18,297.00 U S gallons 

       117.00 Inches       18,398.00 U S gallons 
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